
, -- . . OFICINA DEL COMISIONADO DE ASUNTOS MUNICIPALESAREADEASESoHAMTEI.TJ9:1E_c.14!,erurncrouiriii1iliErCc]-o"rurrscnr_
ABEA OE AHCHIVO DIGITAL

MUNICIPIO DE COROZAL
AUD|TORIA 2010-2011

30 DE JUNIO DE 2011



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

Independent Auditors' Report

Basic Financial Statements and
Supplemental Schedules

Year Ended June 30, 201I



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
IIII]NICIPALITY OF COROZAL

FINANCLAL STATEMENTS AND SI,'PPLE}IENTAL SCHEDULES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

TABLtr OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors' Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Government Wide Financial Statements:

Statement ofNet Assets

Statement of Activities

Frnd Financial Statements:

Covemmental Funds:

Balance Sheet

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Batances to the Statement ofActivities

Proprietary Funds (Historic and Tourist Center ofCibuco):

Statement ofNet Assets

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Statement of Cash Flo\r's

Notes to Financial Statements

Required Supplemental Information:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Debt Service Fund

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Other Supptemental lnformation:

Schedule of Expenditure ofFederal Awards

Notes to Schedule ofExpenditure oFlrederal Alvards

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS AN'D COMPLIANCE SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and on Intemal Control

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and lntemal Conffol

In accordance w ith OMB C ircular A- I 3 3

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Cost

Paqe

I

t2

tl

14

16

18

19

20

2t

22

56

51

58

59

60

6l

63

65



JUAN A. RIVERA, CPA
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOT]NTANT

?}yre: 787-1U-n55
Fx 7A7-1U-2250

EE il: jmddio@[Elltun od

LKgI. NTIOII/N, IA $ DEI UALIE AW TOA bAIA, PR 00949

The Honorable Mayor, Members ofthe
Municipal Legislature and People of
the Municipality of Corozal
Corozal. Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financiat statements ofthe governmental activities, each major fund,

and the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe Municipality ofCorozal ofthe Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico (the "Municipality"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 201 l, which collectively comprise

the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontenls. These financial statements

are the responsibilify ofthe Municipality's management- Our responsibilify is to express opinions on these

financial staternents based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits coDtained in Gowrw ent Auditing Sldndards

issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States Those standards require that we Plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemeots are free of mateial

misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by managemeot, as well as evaluatiDg the overall financial statements

presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respectiv; financial position ofthe governmental activities, each major fund' and the aggregate remaining

fund information of the Municipality of Corozal of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as of June 30,

2011, for the year theD ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.

In accordance with Goye rnme t Audit standards, we have also issued our report dated December 13,201I

on our consideration of the Govemment's intemal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agieement and other matlers'

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal -contro! 
over a financial

reportini ana compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide and opinion on the intemal

"dnt.ol 

"or". 
financial reporting compliance That report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Gouerrment iudit Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our

audit-

INDfPE\D[,\T AI DITORS, REPORT

Mailing AddlesB Box 757, Oolado, PR 00646



The Management's Discussion and A alysis and the Budgelary ConParison Schedule on page 3 thtorgh

1l and 56 through 58 are not required parts ofthe basic financial statemeots but are supplementary

information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica' we
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally ofinquiries ofmanagement regarding

the methods ofmeasurement and presentation ofthe required supplementary informat;on. However, we

did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively

comprise the Municipality ofCorozal ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico basic financial statements

The introductory section, combiniflg and individual non-major fund financial statements, and statistical

section are presented for purposes ofadditional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financial

statements. The accompanying schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office ofManagement and BudgedCircdar A'l33,Audits oJ

States , Local Goternments, and Non- Proft Orga Larrbns, and is also not a required part of the bas ic

financial statements olMunicipality of Corozal ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the combining and

individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards have

been subjected to the auditing procedure applied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements and in our

opinion, are fairly stated in all materiat rcspects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

*hole. The int.odrrctory and statistical sections have not been subjecred to the auditing procedures applied

in the audit ofthe basic financial statements and accordingly we express no opinion on them-

License 2214

December 13, 2011

Toa Baja, Puerto Rico

Stamp No, 2633847 of the Puerto Rico society of Certified Public Accountants u'er€ afiixed to ihe record copy of

this repor

w
Ltc.3 22t4



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAIITY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

- Or. discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Corczal (the Municipality) financial perlormance provides an

- orerview ofthe Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Please read it in

conjunction with the Municipality's fi nancial statements.

- Management of the Municipality of Corozal (the "Municipality") implemented Stat€ment No. J4 ("Statement") of
- the Coveromental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). This Managemeot's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

is prepared as a result of the requirements of such Statement, and it has been designed accordingly with the

- followings goals:

a) Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues,

b) Provide an overview ofthe Municipality's financial activity,
c) Identiry charges in the Municipality's financial position (its ability to address the

next and subsequent year challenges),

- d) Identiry any material deviations from the financial ptan (the approved budget), and;

e) Identiry individual fund issues or concerns.

FINANCLAL HIGHLICHTS
The Municipality Governmental Activities net assets increased by $885,402 (o( 3%).

* The Municipality Business Type Activities net assets decrcased by $122,461 due to depreciation charges. The

Business Type Activities revenue from Municipality contributions decreased $10,287 (or 4%).

expenditures increased $655,509 (4%).

The General Fund Balance (the primary operating fund) rcflected, on a cunenl financial resource basis, a decrease

of $446.8i3.

- 
,n" ,o,n, ."solutions Fund, which accounts for PR Govemment restricted grants for special purposes, increased b)

- $598,748.

The Capital Project Fund Balance, which is reserved for major capital expenditures, reflected an increase of
$1,434,838.

The Debt Service Fund. which is reserved for the long tem debt amortization and related interest payment,

- increased by 9561,875.

On a budgetary basis, actual revenues exceeded actual expenditures by $330,469.

Capital expenditures for acquisition of vehicles, construction and improvements of recrcational facilities, and

infrastructure amounted to $3,247,153.

During current year the Municipality issued $2.515,000 in long term debt



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MTJNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USING THIS ANIIUAL REPORT
This annuat report consists ofa series ofnew financial statements with a change in the focus from previous financial

statements. Tie new focus is on both the Municipality as a whole (govemmenl-wide) and the major individual

funds. Both perspectives (govemment-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a

basis for comparison (year to year or govemment to govemment) and enhance the Municipality and its component

unit's accountability-

Reportitrg the Municipality as a Whole
oni of the most important questions asked about the Municipalitr's finances is' "ls the Municipality as a whole

better off or wo$e off as a result of the year's activities?" The statement of Net Assets and the statement of
Activities report information about the Municipality as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer

this quesdo;. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is

similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. AII ofthe cur:rent year's revenues and expenses arc

taken into account rcgardless ofwhen cash is received or paid

These two statements report the Municipality's net assets and changes in them. You can think ofthe Municipaliqr''s

net assets -the difference between assets and liabilities- as one way to measure the Nlunicipality's financial health, or

financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Municipality's net assels are one indicator ofwhether its

financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such

as changes in the Municipality's property tax base and the condition ofthe Municipality's roads, to assess the overall

health of the Municipa,ity.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Municipality into two kinds ol
activities:

Govemmental activities - Most of the Municipality's basic services are reported here, including the public safety,

sanitation, health, housing, public works, sports and recreation, and general administmtion Property ta,xes,

Municipal ta-res, franchise fees, state contributions and federal grants finance most ofthese activities.

proprietary business type activities - The Municipality includes in its report as a business type activity the

opeiationi ofthe Historic and Tourist Center of Cibuco. This activity is important because the Municipality is

financially accountable for it.

fund Financial Statements
The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most significant funds, not_the

Municipality as a whole. The Municipaliq has tno kinds of fund rvhich are the governmental ftrnd and proprietary

fund.

Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as govemmental activities in the

Govemment Wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the Govemment Wide Financial Statements, Government

Fund Financial Statements focus on near term inflows and outflows ofexpendable resources, as well as on balances

of expendable rcsources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating the

Municipalit,'s near term fi ancial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govemment wide financial statements, it is

useful to compare the infomation presented for govemmental funds with similar information presented for

govemmental ;ctivities in the govemment \,,ide financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic financial

itatements may better understand the long-term impact ofthe Municipality's near term financial decisions-

1



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Both of the Covemmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Govemmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconcitiation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds

and govemmental activities.

proprietary funds arc used when the Municipality charges customers for the services it provides-whether to outside

customers or to other units ofthe Municipality-these services are generally reported in proprietary funds, Proprietary

funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reponed in the Statement ofNet Assets and the Statement of
Activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.

Infrastructure Assets
Historically, a govemment's infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.) have not been reported nor

depreciated in govemment financial statements. GASB 14 requires that these assets be valued and reported within

the govemmental column ofthe Governmen!Wide Statements. Additionally, the govemment must elect to either(a)

depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management designed to

maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. lfthe government develops the asset management system

(the modified approach) which periodicall) (at least every third year), by category, measures and demonstrates its

maintenance oflocally established levels ofservice standards, the govemment may record its cost ofmaintenance in

l;eu of depreciation. The information about the condition and maintenance of condition of the govemment

infrastructure assets should assist financial statement users in evaluating a local government and its performance

over time.

As of July 1, 2003, the Municipality commenced the prospective reporting of infrastructure assets, and retroactively

report the historical costs of infrastructure assets during the fiscal year beginning July l, 2003. Also, the

Municipality elected to depreciate infrastructure assets instead ofusing the modified approach.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WI{OLE

As noted earlier, net assets may serve o\rer time as a useful indicator of a golemment's financial Position. The

Municipa'it"v's net assets of govemmental activities totaled $34,718,623 at the end of current year' compared to

$33,833,221 at the end ofthe previous- year; this increase of$885,402 represents the operational result of excess

revenues over expenditures. The net assets ofthe proprietary business type activities totaled $4,784,374 at th€ end

of current year, compared to $4,906,841 at the end of the previous_ year; this decrease of $122,467 was due to

depreciation charges-

The largest po ion of the Municipalit]'s net assets is the investment in capital assets such as land, buildings,

improv€ments, vehicles, equipment, infrastructure, etc., Iess any outstanding related debt used to acquire those

assets, representing the net amount of$31,223,538. The Municipaliry uses these capital assets to provide services to

its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although, the Municipality's investment

in its capital assets is reported net of retated debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt

must be provided from the Debt Sewice Fund, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabititi;. The amounts restricted for debt service ($2,144,226), amount restricted for other purposes ($1,690,061)

and amounts restricted for capital projects ($7,865,149), represents another portion ofthe net assets. Th€se are

resources subject to extemal restrictions for the purposes explained above-

A comparative analysis of govemment-wide financial data is presented in next page.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANACEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Condensed StateDent ofNet Assets

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010

Govenmental Activities
20ll 2010

Proprietary Fund
20tt 2010

Cunent asset

Capitalassets-net
Other assets

Total assets

Current Iiabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

lnvested in capital assets,

net ofrelated debt
Nonspendable funds
Restricted funds
Committed funds
Deficit

Total net assets

s 7,571,653 $ 6,176,4i4
i1,7 t4,108 17,012,568
10.486.255 9.028.298
55.778.616 52.211.300

4,6't4,397 3,897,533
16.385.596 1,1.486.546

21.059.993 18.i84.079

26,439,161 25,30?,568

307,1l6 331,172
11,699,436 9,8,+6,139

920.081 356,458
(4.647.180) (2.0r,1.116)

$ 34.718.623 S 3i.831.221

10.071 20.365

4,184.3',71 4,906,8,11

$ 10,071
4,784,3',7 4

$ 20,365
4,906,841

4.794.445

10,071

4.927.206

20,365

$,1.784.374 $4.906.841

Changes in Net Assets

The Municipality's governmental activities net assets increases by $885,402; due to excess revenues over expenses.

Approximately 31 percent ofthe Municipality's revenue came lrom taxes, lvhile 6J percent resulted From grants and

contributions, including federal aid. charges for services and ofher sources provided 6 percent of the tolal

rcvenues. Current pe.iol revenues increased by $2,889,199 (18%) while expenses increased $655,509 (4%) The

Municipaliqv,s expinses cover a range ofseflices. The largest expenses were for general governmenl administration,

sanitation, public works, housing, municipal police, health, spons and recreation, interest and depreciation'

The Business type activities net assets decreased by $122,46? due to depreciation charges. Tolal revenue ofthe

business type Jirity 
"u." 

from fees and Municipalitv contributions. The largest expenses were for depreciation,

and operations. The Business Type Activities revenue from Municipaliry_ contributions decreased $10,28'7 or 4vo.

A comparative analysis ofgovernmenlwide operational data is presented in next page.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MIJNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

N4ANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Condensed Statement of Activities

For the years ended June 30, 2011 rnd 2010

COVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
20r1

Progmm revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

Ceneral revenues:

Property ta-xes

Municipal license tax

Sales taxes

lnterest and investment earnings

Grants and contributions not restricted

Total revenues

Expenses

General Administration

Health
Housing
Fmergenc, management and sa[et)

Spofis and rccreation

Sanitation

Elderly centers

lnterest on long{erm debt

Depreciation
Public works

Total expenses

Excess revenues over exPenses

BUSINESS TYPI] ACTIVITIES:
Revenues:

Grants and contributions

Fees

Total revenues

Expenses:

Operating and maintenance

Depreciation

Total expenses

Excess revenue over expenses

$ 1,08i,609

3,5?3,960

r,169,011

2,903,301

t,422,681
363,992

6,999,198

18,618,01l

458,33 r

1,028,600

653,808

472,004

1,131,505

28i,i08
647,151

2,011,601

3,555,071

t'7 ,'7 52,609

2010

$ 694,3',72

1,214,274

2,0t2,6',73

2,532,992
1,056,488

1,442,703

238,040

6,55',7.270

15,748,812

5,'700,62',7

458,331

701,450

705,045

425,638

1,105,044

330,375
'161,256

2.023,079
2,645,427

14,858,2"12

$ !998q

$ 250,691
41,605

292,296

$ 240,404

2',7-7,131

122,389

399,526

$ (122,46',7)

7

292,489
122,618

415,107

s 022.811)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENT'S D1SCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. Excess revenues over expendi rcs

. Transfer from other govemmental funds

FINANCIAL ANAIYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDTI'IDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Municipaliry uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related

legal requirements.

Governmental Funds
The focus of the Municipality,s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and

balances ofexpendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's financing requirements.

In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure ofa govemment's net resources available for

spending at the end ofthe fiscal year.

As of the end of the curent fisca! year, the Municipaliq"s govemmental funds reported combined ending fund

balances of$13,784,914 an increase of $2,123,229 in comparison with the prior year. There are restricted fund

balance amounting to $11,699,416. This is the fund balance that it is not available for new spending because it has

already been committed for the following purposes: l) to pay debt service ($2,114'226), 3) to pay for capital

projecis ($7,865,149) 4) for other purposes ($1,690,061). The unassigned fund balance amounts to $658,231 and

the nonspendable fund balance amounts to $307,1 16, in the govemmental funds.

within rhe govemmental funds, ir is included the General Fund which is the chief operating fund of the

Municipality. As ofJune 30, 2011, the general fund has a balance of$1,338,808. The fund balance ofthe general

fund decreased by $446,833. Key factors in the increase ofthe fund balance are as follows:

$ 482,092

$(928,92s)

Revenues increased by $861,220 (7%) due to an increase in charge for services of$168,542, an increase of

$441,928 in Contribuiions from Covemment olPR, an increase of 5152,377 for interests and a net increase of

$98,373 in alt orher revenue irems. Expenditures increased $847,753 (8%) due to a $906,305 increase in ceneral

administration, and a net decrease of$(58,552) for all other expenditurcs categories'

The capital Project Fund Balance, which is reserved for major capital expenditures, reflected an increase of

$1,434,8j8 due to;xcess expenditures over revenues of $(2,010,254), transfers from the general fund of $930,092

and preceeds from loans issued of$2,515,000. capital expenditures for acquisition ofvehicles, construction aod

improvements ofr€creational facilities, and infrastructure in this fund amounted to $3,063,624'

The Joint R€solutions Fund balance increased by $598,?48 due to excess revenues over expenditures'

The Debt Service Fund balance reported an increase of $561,875 as a result of excess revenues over expenditures

of$563,042, and net transfers to general fund of($1,167).

8



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MTJNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEN{ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Governmental Funds balances decreased by $25,199 due to excess expenditures over revenues'

Business-type Activities net assets decrcased by $122,467. Revenues of the Municipality's business-type

activities reported $277,059 while expenses amounted to $399,526, including a charge for depreciation of$122,389-

Business Type Activities fee revenue decreased $4,950 (12%) and revenue from Municipa'ity contributions

decreased $10,287 (4%). Total expenses decreased by $15,581 (4%).

GENERAL FUI[D BUDGtrTARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Municipality's budget in order to include increases

in revenues that were identified duriog the course of the fiscal year based on current developments that positively

affected tle Municipality,s finances. Increases (decreases) in budgeted expenditures were also made since the lavv

mandates a balanced budget.

In summary the general fund actual revenues were over budget by $90,397 and actual expenditures were under

budget by i240,0J2, for a net favorable variance of $330,469. The most signiflcant individual variances for

reveiues was $89,031 over budget in Covernment ofPuerto fuco Contributions, and the most significanl individual

variance in expenditures *e.e $152,386 and $40,596 under budget for Finance Department and Municipal council

rcspectively.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Municipality's investment h capital assets, including business type activities, as ofJune 30, 2011, amounts to

$63,3 03,90 i, with accumulated depreciation of $20,804,8 19, leaviog a net book value of $42,499,082; of which

s3,7.714,',708 are used for governmental activities and $4,784,374 for business type activities. This investment in

capital assets includes land, builalings, improvements, equipment, vehicles, infrastructure and construction in

progress- Infrastructure assets are items that are normally irremovable and ofvalue only to the state, such as roads,

bridges, streets and sidewalks, and similar items.

Actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital assets for governmental activities were $3,247,353 for the year.

Depreciation charges for rhe year totaled g2,169,996, ofwhich $2,047,607 are related 10 govemmental activities afld

$122,389 to business type activities

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its consuuction activities through bond issuances. The proceeds

from bond issuances designated for construction activiti€s are commifted in its entirety for such purposes and cannot

be used for any other pu;poses. As of June 30, 2OI1 the Municipality has $7,718,023 of unexpended proceeds

from bond issuances and $7,544 from other sources, for a total of $7,725,567 that are committed to future

construction activities, including completion of the Convention Center, the reconstruction ofthe "Plaza Publica",

infrastructure construction and other project.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MAN.AGEMENT,S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bonds payable

Notes payable

Advances from CRIM

Debt Administration

The puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal bonds and

notes for the payme;t of which the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipality may be pledged See

,.Limirations on Ability of Municipalities ro lssue General obligation Debt - The Municipat Bonds" for a general

description of such Iimitations.

The applicable law also requires that in order for a municipality to be able to issue additional general obligation

bonds and notes the municipality must have sufficient "payment capacirl_". ActNo.64 provides that a municipality

has sufficient ,.payment capacity" to incur additional general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's

Redemption Fundand the annual amounts collected with respect to such municipality's Special- Addilional Tax (as

defined below), as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service maturity ofthe municipality's outstanding general

obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt ("Payment Capacity").

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the special Additional Tax ;n such amounts as shall be

reqr:ired for the payment of its general obligation murlicipal bonds and notes. ln addition, principal ofand interest

on all general obiigation municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation ofthe issuance

of generat obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax

rev;nues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service payments on

general obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the special Additional Tax levied by the

i4unicipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipalitv's Redemption Fund, are not sufficient to cover

such debt servici. It has nev€r been necessary to apply Basic laxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of
the Municipality.

During the year ended June 30, 2011the Municipality issued $2,515,000 in long fem debt As of June 30.

2011 the Municipality Long Term Debt is composed as follows:

$ 13,110,000
670,000

1.230.696

$ 15,010,696

other long term obligations consist of$2,110,303 ofaccrued compensated absences such as vacations and sick Ieave

and an accrued legal claim of$200,000.

As of J une 3 0, 20 I I the M unicipal ity redemption fund (debt serv ice) has resources of $2, I 44,226, rcstricted for the

payment oflong term debt principal and interest.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipality relies primarily on proper-v and municipal taxes as \!ell as contributions and Srants to carry out

the govemmental activities- Hi;toric;lly, property taxes! municipal taxes and PR Government contributions have

been predictable. Federal grant revenu;s ma,v vary if new grants are available but the revenue also is very

predictable-

l0



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANACEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Factors considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the 201 l-2012 fiscalyear'

In summary all rcvenues and expenditures for the general fund were budgeted in $12,357,785 which represents a net

increase of $100,089 or 1% in estimated revenues; and a nel increase of $100,089 or 1olo for expenditure

appropriations.

The most significant changes presented between the budget for fiscal yeaI2010-201I and the one for fiscal yea.

2011-2012 are the following:

$(843,246)
367,036
r53,643
9i,981
73,098
68,403

TINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality,s financial statements arc designed to preseDt users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and

creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's

accounta'bility. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the

Municipality's chiefFinancial officer at P.o. Box 710 or#9 cervantes street, corozal, Puerto Rico 00783.

1l

Finance Department - budget reduction of
Public Works Department - budget increase of
Sanitarion Departmenl - budgel increase of
Emergency Management Department - budget increase of
Contributions to Historical Center - budget increase of
Citizen H€lp Department - budget increase of



COMMONWEALTH OF PT]ERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
STATEMENT OF Nf,T ASSETS

JUNE 30. 2011

GOVERNMf,NTAT BUSINtrSS TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES

201|
TOTAL

2010

TOTALASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable:

Other
Taxes

Due from other govemments

Total current assets

Cash held with fiscal agent

Capilal Assets (net of depreciatjon)

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LlABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other govemmental units
Deferred Revenues

Accrued interest on Loans
Current portion oflong term debt

Total curent liahiliiies

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances from CRIM Law 42
Advances fton CRIM Law 146

Advances Som CRIM - other
Bonds Payable

Notes payable

Legal claims and judgements

Accrued compensated absences

Less: Reported as current portion

Total noncurent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

2.020,967
2,800.000

I58,550
590,823

2,007,i l3
7,57',7,653

10,486,255

37,714,108

48,200,963

55,778,6t6

s 2.020,967
2,800,000

i68,621
590,a23

2.007,it3
7,58',7.721

s 926,115
3,300,000

200,637
275,88t

1.491.566

642,351

1,213,385

1,031,412

236,264
'794.486

3,917,898

r.007,986
243,925

33,2',71

l r,000,000
705,000
350,000

1.940-850

I5,281,032

094,486\

10,071

4,184,3',74 50,947,107

4,794,445 60,573,061 5',7.144,506

r0,071 6,t96,199

1,181,311
r0,486,2s5 9,028,298
42,499,082 41,919.409

t0.071

NET
lnvested in Capital
Non-spendable

Restricted

Commitled
De6cii

TOTAL NET

ASSETS
Assets. ner olrelated debl

ASSETS

The

986,44t
232,838

1t,411
13,110,000

670,000
200,000

2.110.301

17,320,999
(935,403)

16,385,596

21,059,993

26,439,164
307,116

1,699,436
920.087

(4,647,180)

!_____lu !q,6?1 q______!q!11

31.223,538
107,1l6

I1.699,436
920,087

(4,647,180)

q_i:rl-€z

10,2r4,,109

33',7,112

9,846,139
356,458

(2,014,1r6)

r__:!3q!e

644,61I
1,679,4i3
1,0i9,182

3',75.76{)

935.,10i

651,690
1,679,4i1
1,0i9,182

3.75,',]60

935,403

4,684,468

986,441

212,838
I I,417

13,I10,000
670,000
200,000

2.110.303

17,320,999

10.071

16,385,596 14.486,5,16

10,071 21.070.064 i8,404,44,1

4,784,3',71

accompanying notes are inte$al part of
See auditor's report.

1?

rhe finan.ial rtatements
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITI]RES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

TO THE STATf,MENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE I'EAR ENDED JT]NE 30' 2OT1

Net changes in fund balances _ total governmental funds

Reconciling items:

Payment of legal claim

Increase in accrued compensated absences

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures'

However. in the statement of activities the cost of these

assets is allocated over iheir estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by

which capital outlays ($3,247,353) exceed depreciation

"*p"nr" i$z,o+;,ool) in the current period l'199,746

$ 2,t23,229

(350,000)

(169,4s3)

(1,952,114)

Other expenses reported in the statement ofactivities do not

require the use ofcurrent financial resources and therefore are

not reported as expenditures in governmental funds 33'994

Bonds proceeds provide current financia! resources to

govemmental funds, but issuing debt increases long{erm

liabilities in the statement of net assets- Repayment of

bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds'

but the repayment reduces long_term liabilities in the

statement of net assets This is the amount by phich

proceeds ($2,5 15,000) exceeded repayments ($562'886)'

Changes in net assets of govemmental activities

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements-

See auditor's report'

l8



COWION1VEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

\IUNICIPALITY OF COROZ.AI

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FI]ND

HISTORIC AND TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO
(PROPERTY OF N'IUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL)

.Iune 30.2011
2011 2010

ASStrTS

Current Assets:

Petty cash

Cash in Bank

Accounts receivable:

Other
Allowance for bad debts

Toial current assets

Fixed Assets:

Land
Buildings and imProvements

Equipment, fumiturc and fixtures

Vehicles

Accumulated depreciation

Total fixed assets

Other assets:

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable - trade

Other

Total curent liabilities

Net assets:

Net investment in fixed assets

Unrestricted

Net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

s 4-794.445 $ 4.q27,206

10,071 $ 20,365,

10,071 20,365

4,784,3',74 4,906,841

4.',781.314 4.906,841

s 4.794.445 $ 4,921,206

-$

10,071 20,365

10,071

444,367

5,533,562

249,600
117,180

6,344,709
( 1,s60,335)

4,784,37 4

20,365

20.365

444,367

5,533,562

249,600

117,180

6,344,709
(1,437,868)

4,906,841

-L

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements'

See IndePendent Auditors' RePort'

l9
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAIITY OF COROZAL

STATEMENT OF RXVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CTLdI{GES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRJETARY FUNI)

IIISTORIC AND TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO
(PROPERTY OF ML]}{CIPALITY OF COROZAL)

FOR THE YIAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

RtrVEI\ruES:

AdmissioD fee

Rental fee

Other incorne - municipal contribution

Total revenues

EXPf,NSES:

Operating and maintenance

Depreciation

Other

COST OF OPERATIONS

EXCESS COSTS OVER REVENUES (122,467) (122,8r l)

(t22,467) (122,81r )

20lt

$ r 3,555

23,100

240,404

271,0s9

2010

$ 18,805

22,800
250,69t

292,296

27 7,137

122,389

292,296

t22,618
193

399.526 415,107

OTTIER

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Prior Period Adjustments

BEGINNING NET ASSETS

ENDING NET ASSETS

,+,906,841

$ 1J!1121

5,029,652

$ 4,906,841

The accompanying notes are integml part of the financial statem€nts'

See [ndepe.dent Audito$' Reporr.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PI]ERTO RICO
MUMCIPALITY OF COROZAI

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRJETARY FUND

HISTORIC AIID TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO
(PROPERTY OF MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTfI'ITIES

Changes in net assets

Adjuslment lo con!efi change- in nel assetr

to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expenses

(lncrease) Decrease in accounts receivable _

Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable _ trade

Other items

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTWITTES

CASH FLOWS FROM IN\'ESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase) Decrease in other equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTINC ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVTIIES

2011 2010

$ (122,461) $ (122,811)

122,389

10,29,1

(10,291)
'78

122,618

(18,398)

18,198

193

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR -$

The accompanying notes are integml part of the financial statements'

See IndePendent Auditors' Report.
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COMMONWEAITH OF PUtrRTO RICO
MTJNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

1. Organization anal Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies

The MuniciDalitv ofCorozal ot the Lommonwealth ofPuerto Rico (the "Municipality") is a Iocal govemment

..*iiiri"i i, ii'ss *t,h fult legistative, fiscat and administrative powers to operate as a govemment.

The Commonwealth's Constitution provides for the separatron of poweA of the e\ecutive' legislative and

iudicial branches otrhe Common\eallh *a rft" rnu"i"ipufitit' Ho\e\er' the Munlcipaliry's govemmenlal

'.,.,.. 
""*i.i. "r**urive 

and legislative bran.her only. A \4a)or. etected ere,1 lour ]ea,. by the citirerrs'

:x:;i;"s"il. ;;ffi; p"** 
"r,t"" 

rra."i.ip"lity. The Lgistariv; po.er of rhe Municipality is exercised by

rhe vlunicipal Legislatu,.. *ho." r.,b.,, uit ulio tl"trtit"'1 fourlears Thejudiciarypo*erisererci'ed

i." ,i,"?""!rrrlr!ir". court Svstem ofthe commonwealth' which has lurisdiction over the Municipality'

Th" M,,ni.in2lii! assumes either full or shared responsibility for providing services to its citizens related to

:l;,':'H:[;:'";il;;:;;;il;:;i;i n"lrin. .-r'urio,..d'"uiion "rt"'. recreation' educa(ron' urban

i.ratop."n,. !.ono.i. de\elopment. and man) other fiscal Seneral and admrnrslratr\e \ervlces'

Financial Reporting Model

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financiat position,and rhe results ofoperations of

;;;;;6;ilt; " 
*hole' and its various golemmental funds as of and for the fiscal vear €nded June

30, 201l, in conformity with u""o*tliof plitipftt generall). accepted 
:n,:h.e-Ynited 

States of America

iceepl,'u. pi".".it"a 
"by 

the Govemmental Accounting standards Board (cASB)'

Accordiflg to the financial reporting moclel established by GASB Statement No Jl' Basic

Fi ancial Statenents ora u""oiZ^iin, s Discussion a'nd Ana\sis for State and Local
-i"r"rr."rr, 

(GASB No. 34), the ?equired basic financial statement presentation applicable to

ir" ul."i"ip"il,y is composed of tire following elements: (l) govemment-wide financial

statements (GWFS), (Z) gou"'m"ntal tund finaicial statements (GFFS)' (3) notes to basic

i,"-"iJ uuL-*rt, *a (4) required supplementary information (RSI)'

Rsl,consistingofaManagement'sDiscussionandAoalysis(MD&A),isinformationpresentedalong
with, but separ:ate fiom, Municipalitv's basic financial statements'

MD&4 is a narrative report that introduces the accompanying b-asic.financial statements and provides an

amhrical overview.ro" rrauri"ip"iii-t nnanciat act;vltiei for the fiscal vear ended June 30' 201l'

illlli..'tn" n"i,.i",r,l,,v'' k;;Jil;; "r;i" t'u'"u.tion" evenrs and conditions reflected in the bas;c

financial statements. The VOae 
"ft""ft;iftfigt'ts 

cenain ke) fiscal polrcies that controt the Municipality's

operations.

a)

23



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20ll
(continued)

Other supplementary information presented in this report for purposes ofadditional analysis consists of:

r tr combinire and indiudual non-major goremmental lund financial staremenls l2) budgetarl compan'on

::,1"r;i;'l'ffi,';",.. n "all"J ill slhedr.rres or capirat assers u.ed in rhe operations of goremmental

funds, as listed in the accompanying table ofcontents

b) Financial Reporting trrtity

The Municipality follows the provisions of GASB Statement No 14' The Financial Repo ing Enti\) (GASB

N", iiir"a'cai;g s"tement No. 39, Deternining tlhethe.r Certain oryanizat@ns are Component Units an

)-i)iment oJ C,ISA State err No. .11 (GASB No' J9l to determ ine irs financ ial reporting entitv'

The accompanying basic financial statements include all depanments' agencies and municipal operational

,"i .,rr", 
^i" "ia"i,f,. 

regat and aaminl-stratiue control ofthe Mayor' and whose financial resources are under

,h"'LgJ'**"av 
""a "o.i.t 

otttt. Uuni"iputity's Director of Finance and Budget' as prescribed by Act No'

81.

The Municipality's management has consi'lered all potential component units (whether govemmental' nof_

for-nrofit or Drofit-oriented) for rvhich it may bi financially accountable' and other legally separate

ll-lii^i;"i. ,.[r"ir'.i, ,r,. ruir",.'p"ri,, i' ""i 
nianciatll accountable but the narure and 'ignrficance olt'eir

relationship with tIe Muni"ipulity rnuy''b" t'"t' it'ut 
"ttt"ion 

of tl'"it Uasic financial statements from those of

irr"'r,irriiip"r*y *"tra 
""u." 

tt," u""oi'p"t'yinj basic financial statements to- b€ misleading or incomplete'

Accordingly, a Iegally s"p*u," o.g,n"otltn i'oild be reported as a componeot unit of the Municipality ifall

of the following criteria are met:

The Mayor appoints a voting majori$ of an organization's goveming body and' either (1) the

Municipality has the abillty a irnpotl-iil'";f f on that irganizarion o-r 12)rhe organization las the potential

i" pl"riJ" tir""in" n*ncial beneits to, or impose speci-fic financial burdens on' the Municipality-

The economic resources, for which the Municipalit) is entitted' either received or held by the separate

..g""i-,Jr, "* 
*ti."lyo. ultoti 

"ntittty 
fo' tire direct benefit ofthe Municipality or its constituents'

The Municipality's management has concluded that' based on the aforementioned criteria there is no entity

that should be reported as component units ofthe Mrrnicipality for the fiscal year ended June 30' 2011'

c) Gov€rnm€nt-wideFinancialStatements

The accompanying GwlS are composed of: (1, the statement of net assets and^(2) the statement of activities'

These financial sratemenrs report ,t;uiion or rrr govemmenral acrivities of the Municipality as a \,!hole

lhese.raremenll are aimed ar pr".."ii""', ur*J 
"i"rview 

ot lhe Municipaliry s finance-,b] reponing it'

n""""i"ip".i f"" and results of operatiins using methods that are similar to those used by most prl\'ate

businesses.
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The focus ofGWIS is on the operational accountability ofthe Municipality as a si[gle economic unit and not

on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use of availabte or currently expendable

financiai resources (referred to as fiscal accountability). Operational accountability is the Municipality's

responsibiliq to report to the extent to which it has met its operating objectives efficiently and effectively,

Lrsing all resources avaitable for thal purpose. It focuses ol1 the Municipality's principal operating objective,

which is to provide services 1o its citizens.

Statement ofNet Assets
ff," u."ornpunylr,g .tatement of net assets provides short_term and long-term information about the

Municipality's flnincial position by presenring all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities, with the

differe;ce between these two items reported as "net assets" (equity) and or net liabilities. This statement

assists management in assessing the level of services that can be provided by the Municipality in the future

and its ability to meet its obligations as they become due. In addition, this statement reports the extent to

which the Niunicipality has irwested in capital assets and discloses legal and contractual restrictions on

Net assets are classified in the accompanying statement ofnet assets within the following three categories:

Investeal ir capital assets, net of relateal debt This net asset category consists ofcapital assets, net of
accumulated d;preciation and amortization, rcduced by the outstanding balances of boads payable, notes

payable and otlier debts that are attributed to the acquisition, construction or impovement of those assers

icapitatrelatea aebtl. ror rhe purposes ofderermining the outstanding debt attributed ro capital assers, the

totallong-termdebtrelatedtotheacqulsirion,constructionorimprovementofcapitalassetshasbeen
reduced 6y any related unspent debt proceeds and an) relared unamortized debt issuance costs'

h addition, for the purposes ofdetermining the outstanding debt attributed to capital assets' the following

items are excluded from the calculation: (11 interest payable, (2) accrued interest on deep discount debt

and non-capital accrued liabilities (e.g. compensated ibsences, claims and iudgments' etc')' and (3) debt

used to finance capital acquisitiolrs by parties outside the Municipality Furthermore, the computation or

net asse6 investe; in capital assets. net of related debt, excludes inter-fuod loans and other financial

assets.

Restricted tret assets -This net asset category consists ofnet resources restricted by external parties (such

as debt covenants, creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations o f oth er govern ments' etc')' or net

assetsforwhichconstraints-areimposedbyconstjtutionalprovisionsorenabliflglegislation.Enabling
f"giri",i". ""*i." of legislation that authoiizes the Municipality to assess, levy' charge or otherwise

alnJu,. puy*"n, of..soi.ces (f.om external resource providers)' Enabling legislation establishes

Restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resouces be used only for

the specific puposes stipulated in the legislation'
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-a

The classificalion of restricted net assets identifies resources that have been received or eamed by the

f.A,r"i";p"fi,1 Wi*, Af .xplicit understanding bet\reen the Munlcipality and the.resource providers that the

.".oril'", *'orra u" ut"d'for specific purpoies Crants, contrrbr-ttions and donations ar€ often given under

those kinds ofconditions. Bond indentures also often limit the use ofbond proceeds to specific purposes-

Internally imposed desigrations of resources' including earmarking, are not reported as restrict€d net assets'

iir"." iirlg"i i... *"Jst ofmanagemenfs plans for ihe use ofreiources' which are subject to change at the

discretion of the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality has reported the following types of restricted net assets in the accompanying statement of

net assets as ofJune 30, 201 l:

(l) Debt service - Represent net resources available to cover future debt serv;ce payments of bonds

payable.

(2) Other purposes -Represent net resources ava;lable fiom certain federat and siate grants' which have

been set aside to carry out seveml progmms'

(3) Capital project - Represents Det resources available for the acqirisition or construction of maior

capital facilities.

Unrestricted net assets _ Generally, this category consists ofthe excess of assets over relaled liabilities that

u.._n"iit.. 
"*t"*uffy 

nor legally restricted, nlither invested in capital assets' Generally' the assets record€d

;;i;;;;; ";;g;;'"; 
designated to indicate that management does not consider them to be available for

*""".a' .p"*;I..l Assets ieponed within this catego"ry often have constraints that are imposed by

iranagemenr but can be remo\ed or modified'

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use' it is the Municipality's policy to

g"""."fiy ,t" ."""f"i"a resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed'

Statement of Activities
I r,e a..6mnan\ ino sutement ot actrr req presenrs rhe MunicipaliD's re.ults ofoperarion- b1 shournghon

i;; r;;;l;;ii;:i;;"t'.i' lr,-e"a duiing the fi'cal )ear ended June l0 20ll u)ino a net (expense)

re\enue formal. lhi. 'latement presenls tt,e ci* oftach functioruprogram as nell a' the exlenl to $hich each

of the Municipality's ftrnctions, programs or other services eithir contributes to or draws from the

l.ir.i.iplinv;,-'g"rJ.^i.","n,"s (tu"h'"t ptoperty taxes' municipal license taxes' construction excise taxes'

etc.).
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A function/program describes a group ot activities lhat are almed at a(complishing a major service

or regulatory responsibiri'r-' iit"i'nitionvp'ograms reported in lhe arcompanying basic financial

slatements are: (l) general administration, (2) Pubtic work' (3) Health' (4) emergency

,"""rg".*t, tsi fuir"ii,ipal folice (6) Sports ani iecreation (7) Sanitation (8) Elderly centers (9)

Housing.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which program revenues offset direct expenses of a

given flrnctio program or segments' o""li 
"tp1"t"t 

are those tiat are clearl) identifiable with a spec;fic

?r."rion. ."*rJ"t i. operario;al unit. This stat;ment repo(s revenues in tuo broad catego es: (1) program

rerenues ani 12; general revenues.

prosram revenues are qenerated directty from a program itself or may come from parties outside the

ii;:,;';^il:';;;;-;;;li'; l; the statemeni of activities' prosram revenues reduce the costs

(expenses) of the functionlprog.u. to u"it" ut: fll the net cost of the fLrndi;n/program that must be financed

from the Municipaliry's general revenues or (2) ih; net program revenue that-contributes to the Municipality's

;;;r;i *r.;;: Tire iccompanying statement of aitivities reports the following categories of program

ier enue' lor rhe fiscal ]ear ended June l0' 201 I :

Charges lor s€rvices These revenues generall) consi\t of exchangt or exchange-like transactions

involving charges to customers or applicants wno O.urcl1se' use or directly benefil from the goods'

,i."i."rit pil"i"g* p.ouia.a, ot u'"'Jrr''lt*ise direcily affecred b-r the services These revenues include

il.-;d"i fo. ip."in" se*ices' charges for licenses and permits' and fines and forfeitures' among

others.

Program_specific operating and capital -gmnts 
and contributioos -- 

These revenues consist of

traniactions that are;ither mandatoo ;r vol-untary non_exchange transactions with other govemments'

".g^"i*i"rr, 
or individuals that ...i.,"r th",".oui.., for use in a particular program Operating gants

and contributions consist of resources that are required to be used to finance the costs of operating a

specific prograrn o, "* u. u."a tititt Ct opt'uting o' capirat purpose' of a lpecific program' CapiLal

giunir'rna lon,riuu,ions consist of "'"n"' 
o' re'ource' rhat are re)tricled for capiral pulpo'es to

nurchase. construct or r"no,ut. .uii,,f_^ttit u"ociared *i'l a specific program Restricted operating and

$ili;;;;i#;;;;i;;;;;:-;.. p,"e|^", 
'|evenue\ 

bec'2u'e rhe) are specincarr) annbutabre to a

program and reduce the net 
"*pt*"'oitttu'program 

lo lhe Municipatiw' fhey are reporled nel ol-

estimated uncollectible amounts'

General revenues are the default category for re"enues' l! includes all re''enries and gains that do not meet the

definition of program r"'"nu"'' ptop'# t*"t' munic'pal litense raxes' sates and use taxes and construction

excise taxes are report"a u, gtn"tuf *""nu"t ill other non-tax reuenues (including unrestricted interest on

deposits, grants and cont ifutio" noii"tttl"t"a foi tp""i6" p'og'urnt and miscell'neolrs revenues) that do not

meet the definition of p.og.u* t"u"nu"t u'" 
"tuttifi"a 

u' gt-n"tul t"'"nut' R€sources that are dedicated

intemally by the Municipur;ty ut" tio"n"a*uJ g;ntt"f 
"v"nu_"t 

tuttt"' tttan as program rev€nLres All general

revenues are reported net of estimattJ '*"ffJ"'iUf" 
amounts' which are recorded as reduction of revenues

rather than as expenses-

21



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
(continued)

fhe general govemmenl funclion program reporled ir the accompan)ing staremenr of activilies includec

"*p.n'... 
,t u, u.". in es-ence. indirecr or co't' oi other [uncrion' program' ol lhe Municipaliry'

Even though some of these costs have beerl charged to certain funds in the CFFS as indirect cost allocations

nermined under some lederal programs the Municipalig has reponed these indirect co+s as dtrect erpense'

Ii'i;,J.l".iif"",';;;r""i {,.ii* e"'"'aing5i tt'e vun'iipatiry generalll doe' nor allocate seneral

gor emment t indirect t co.ls to other lunclionl'

The effects ofall inter-fund govemmental activities (revenues, expenditures and other financing sources/uses

".""g 
g"r";*"f fundsJ have u."n i"to"a from the aciompanying statements of net assets and

activities.

The Municipality classifies all ofits acti!itie! as governmental acti!ities In the accompanying GWFS' These

-" *tiriii"l g"i"."rry nnanced through ta\es, inirgoremmental re\enues and olher non-exchange revenues

irr", *. i" ,t"Jt. .,]rpon the Municifality's progiams o' seruices' These governmental activities are also

generally reported in the GFFS.

The Mun;cipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Municipality would be holdiig or

*"""g*g "!i"tl"i 
c"r specific individuals or other external parties in accordance with trust agreements or

other custodial arran gements.

d) Governmental Fund Firancial Stat€ments

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entiq consisting of a self_balancing set-of-accounts used to record assets'

iiutititio una .".iauul 
"quities, 

dificits or balance; and changes therein, which are segregated for the puPose

;il;;;;;" specific 
'activiiies 

- uttuln;ng certain objeciives in accordance with GAAP and/or special

regulations, restrictions or limitations'

The accompanying GFFS are cornposed of: (l) the balance sheet -govemmental funds' (2) the statement of

;;;;,;;;;til and change; in tu;; ;;iances 1deficits1 govirnmentat funds and (3) the statement of

."r".t"a't i"*p*altres budg;t and actual -budgetary basis -general fund

These financial statements report the financial position and results operations of the Municipality's

po!emmenlal funds by pretenllng to"t"t ""t uni b'luntt' ol current llnancial resource-' Some ofthe\e

F;;Ui.;;i;;;; Li"'" ma!"""-"a."*ion and focus primarily on: (r) rhe Municipalitv's major

oovemmental fund.. a. defined b.l";'-;i; ii; fi'cal accountabilir) and {1) rhe individual pans ol rhe

ffilHiil:';;;;;* i'i'*r ".'"*''riri', 
repre\enr\ the Municipali$ s responsibilirv ro justiI rhar its

actions in the current nr"ufr""r r,""t tJrnpii"a'*il'tr pubtic decis'ont conceming the rai:ing and 'pending 
of

public mooeys in the short term (generally one fiscalyear)'

The accompanying GFFS segregate go\enrmental funds according io their intended pupose and are

used in demonstrating compliattce iirh legal' financial and-contraclual lrovisions The minimum

number of govemmental n-a. it rnJrlt"i"ti 
"onsistent 

with legal and self-imposed managerial

rcquirement; established by the Municipality'
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For financial reporting purposes, the Munic;pality classifies its governmental funds within the following

categories:

General funil -The general fund is the Municipality's main operatiDg fund and a major governmental fund,

as defined below, used to account for all financial resources and govemmental activities, except for financial

resources required to be accounted for in another fund. It is presumed that the Municipality's governmental

activities have been reported in ihe general fund except for transactions for [hich one of the following

compelling reasons has required the use of another fund: (l) tegal requirements, (2) CAAP requirements or

1:.y itre aernanas of sound hnancial administration requi ng the use of a govemmental fund other than the

general firnd.

Debt serice fund - The debt service filnd is a major governmental fund, as defined below, used by dre

Municipality to account for the accumulation of resources for. and the payment of, principal and interest for:

(1) bonds payable for which debt service payments are legally mandated to be accounied for in a debt service

irna *aloi (2) bonds payable or any general long{erm debt for which the Municipality is being

accumulating inancial reiources in advance to pay principal and interest palments maturing in future )ears

Consistently;ith the prior fiscal years' financial statement presentation, during the fiscal year ended June 30,

201 1, the hnancial activity accounted for in the debt service fund was specifically related to bonds payable.

Special revenue funds - Speciat revenue funds are governmental funds, as defined below, used by the

Municipality to account for revenues derived from grants, cootributions or other revenue sources that are

either self-ristricted by the Municipality or legally resticted by outside parties for use io specific purposes

The uses and limitations of each special revelue fund are specified by municipal ordinances or federal and

state statutes. HoNever, resources restricted to expenditures for purposes normal,y ilnanced from the general

fund are feported in the Municipality,s gereml fund provided that all applicable legal requirements are

appropriatel,v satisfied. In this ca;e, a special revenue fund to account for such kind of transactions will be

used only iflegally mandated.

capitrl projects funds - capital prcjects funds are govemmental funds, used to account for the financial

.""ou."". urid fo. th" acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital facilities and other assets.

Signilicant capital outlayi financed from proceeds of general obligation, public improvement or special

obligation bonds accounted for in the capital projects funds

The use of the capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital acquisitions, construction or

improvement acti;ities th;t would distort financial resources trend data if not reported separately from the

other Municipaliry's operating activities.

ProprietaryFun.ls-Proprietaryfundsareusedtoaccountforbusiness-likeactivitiesprovidedtothe
g"r6rul pudli". These actiiities are financed primarily by user charyes and the measuremenr of financial

lctivity iocus"s on net in"o." ."r.ur"..nt .i.ilar to the private sector. The r€porting entity includes the

Historic and Tourist Center ofCibuco as a proprietary fund-
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The focus of the CFFS is on major governmental funds, which generally represent the Municipality's most

imnort^nt funds. AccordinglY. the Munr.,puiity it t"quitti to 
'"gt"-gat" 

gou"*rn"ntul funds between major and

;;J:;;;r';;i;;";l;. ; ir'r'';i ir," cr rs. vu;o' indrr idual sor emmenral tunds are Ieponed indir idualh as separate

".ir.ni in rt. Clfs, uhile dala from ali non-majo' go"ternmenral furrd5 are aggregated inro a iingle column'

regardless of fund tyPe

By definition, the Municipality's general fund is considered a major governmenral fund for financial reporting

pi.po.e". i, uaaition, -y othei goiemmental fund would be classified as a major govemmental fund in the GFFS

if its total assets, liabilities, rcvenues or expenditure\ of thar indrvidual govemmenlal fund are at least l0 percent

"iii"..t"+""a.g "lem;nt 
total (assets, liabiliries, revenues or e\pendrtures) for.all governmental funds For

ifl" pr.r".". li rppfrf"g the aforementioned major fund cnteria, no elrminations ofrDiertund balances have been

made. Total revenues fbr these purposes means ull ,"., 
"ru.r, 

including operating and non-operating revenues (net

of allowances for uncollectible accounts): e\cepl for other financing sources' Iotal expenditures for these

;;;;;;-;;;;;li .;;itures, including operating and no'r-operuting erpenditLrres' except for other financing

Basealon the aforementioned criteria, the Municipality's major governmental funds reported in the accofipanying

Cefs "r. iti tt" 
g"n.rut tund, (2) the debt service funa, (S) tL" capital improvements fund' and (4) joint

resolutions fund.

TheMunicipalityperiodicallyundertakesacomprehensi!ee!aluationofit5fundstructuretoensurethatcomplies
$ith all asDecls thal are ol rmponance to useri of general purpo'e extemal finamial repodq Con'equentl) all

:,;#;;I;;:-;;J ;*;'i,".;""i runds currintll used b) \4unicipdlir) in the dav'ro-da) accounrins

;;5.ffi;* *ili ;; ;p*.J as individual govemmental funds in the accompanvins fund financial

statements.

The accompanying GFFS are accompanied by lhe following^schedules required,b) CAAP: (1) the reconciliat;on

"iif," 
O"f"i* ltt.!, - go,remmental funds to the satement of net assets' and (-2) the reconciliation ofthe statement

"i."r"*"r, 
..p."ar*ies and changes in fund balances _ governmental funds to the statement ofactivities'

e) Measurement Focus and Basis ofAccounting

Govemm€nt-lviale finalcial statements - The accompanying cwFS are prepared using the economic

resources measurement focus and tMccrual basis oi accounting. Subject to the additional rules and

limitations detailed belo*,."u"ru". linclud,rg interest on deposils;nd inlestments) are generally recorded

when eamed and expenses u." g"tttuiU reco-rded when a li;bilitl is incurred' regardless ofthe timing of

related cash flows.

All reveoues, expenses, gains losses, assets and liabilities resulting lrom exchange and exchange-like

traosactioos are generally recoraea *h-en the exchange takes place' In eichange transactions' each party to the

transaction receives and gives up esslntialll equal 'ilues' 
An ej\change_like rransaction is one in which there

is an identifiable exchange and the ral,res eichanged, though related, ma) nol be quite equal Nevertheless,
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the exchange characteristics of the exchangelike transactioD ale strong €nough to justily tfeating it as an

exchange fir accounting purposes (example-s include fees for licenses and permits, charges for services, and

miscellineous revenues-, rvhich are recorded as revenues when collected because they are genemlly not

measurable until actually received).

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets rcsulting from non-exchange ftansactions are recorded using

the criteria set iorth by-GASB Statement No 33, Accounting and Financial RePorting for Non-exchange

iransactions (GASB No. Jll. CASB No. 33 established accounting and reporting standards for non-exchange

t.un.^"tion, involving cash and financial or capital resources (for example' most taxes, grants and private

donations). ln a non_exchange tmnsaction, th; Municipality Sives (or receives) value without directly

receivingior giving) equal vatue in return. This is different from an exchange transaction, in which each party

."".i,r","-d iir".-up ".senrially 
equal values. According to CASB No. 33, the Municipality Broups its 0on-

exchange traisactions into the fotiowing four classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a)

a".lr"d- t* revenues, (b) imposed nin-exchange revenues' (c) govemment mandated non-exchange

transactions, and (d) voluntary non_exchange transactions.

In the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and municipal license taxes)'

which resutt from assessments made by the Municipality on non-govemmental entities, including individuals,

other than assessments on exchange transactions, receivables are generally recorded in the period when an

enforceable legal claim has arisen. Property taxes and municipal license are generally recorded as r€venues (oet of

amounts consiered not collectible) in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the fimt fiscal year

that the use ofthe resources is pelmitted.

covemment-maDdated non-exchange transactions (such as grants and contributions) result \rhen a government at

one leve) (such as the federal or state govemment) p.ouid"' tt'o"""t to the Municipality and the provid€r

g;u"-*"i t"qui.". tlre Municipality to ise those resources for a specific purpose or purposes established in the

iro"ia*'a *"dli"g legislation. In tiese type of tmnsactions, receivabtes and reveflles are generally recorded

ivhen all eligib i! .""quir"*"nt. imposed'by the provider have been m€t 
^ 
For.the majority of grants' the

Municipaliq musi expend resources on the specilic purpose or project before the provider reimburses any

".ornt,- 
niu"nu" i., titerefore, genemlly recognized as qualifying reimbursable €xpendiiures are inculTed'

Votuntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and entitlements) result liom

lelishtii:e or cont.actuai agreements, other than exchanges, willingly entered into by two or more parties ln these

rvies of transactions, receilables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as govemment-

;il"i;J;;;;^"h;; transacrion: discussed ab-ove' Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchangc

i..."""ii"." 
"." 

.""..a!d when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of loss is reasonably

estimable.

Receipts of any type of revenue sources collected in advance for use in the following fiscat year are recorded as

uneamed (defened) revenues.
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AccordingloGASBNo,34,allgeneralcapitalassetsandtheun-maturedlong-termliabilitiesarerecordedonlyin
lh" u""oipuny;ng statement oi net asseis. The measurement focus and the basis of accounting used in the

,"".,.oanvinecwrsa;rtersrgnificantl}fromthemeasurementfocusandbasisofaccountingusedinthe
;;;;;;;; ;it; *""mpan1inI crrs. iherefore, the accompanving GFFS include reconciliations' as detailed

in ii" u..o*punyirg ,uUIe of coitents, to better identiry the relatiooship between the CwFS and the GFFS'

Governmental fund financial statements fhe accompan)lng GFF.S.are refgjted using the current financial

ffintfinancialresources)andthemodifiedaccrualbasisofaccounting-
Accordingly, the accompanying statement ofrelenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -governmental

fr.ar, ."'i#. lt""g* i'n th" ui ornt offin^n"ial resourcis available in the near future as a result oftransactioDs

una 
"r"ni. 

of ttt" Escal year reported. Thetefore, revenues are generally recognized as soon as they are both

measurabteandavailable.Revenuesareconsideredtobeavailablewhentheyarecollectible\,'ithinthecurrent
tirJ f"u. o. .oon 

"nough 
thereafter to pay liabilities ofthe current 6scal year' For this purpose' the Municipalitr-

g"""rifiv *r.ia".. moit revenues (rnuiicipal licenses ta\es' construction e\cise^ taxes' sales and use taxes'

i"t".""iJ." a"p*it, i"tergovemment;l grants and contributions and cenain charges for services) to be available il

"oit""t"a 
*itttin so a"ys a'fter June 10, 201 l, except lor property taxes for which the availability period is 60 days'

n"n,"nr" ,our"", no, .eeting this availabilir, criterion or iollected in advance are recorded as deferred revenues

at June 30, 201 l.

The principal revenue sources corsidercd susceptlble to accrual lnclude properB la\€s' municipal license taxes'

1",".i"r"d-"r"i g.""s and contributions, interest on deposirs, and cenain charges for services' These principal

."r"ir" .or."". ."1, both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying GFFS, except for amounts

recorded as deferred revenues.

In a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited b) lhe availability crireri' discussed above all

revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and'iiabilitles resulting from e\change and e\change-like transaciions are

^1." 
g"""r"lly **;;'"d when the exchange takes place A'ccordingly, fees for licenses and permits' charg€s for

services and miscellaneous .evenues are .ecorded as revenues when collected because they are generally oot

measurable until actually received

Allrevenues'expenses,gains,lossesandassetsresultingfromnon.exchangetransactlonsarerecordedinaSimilar
."..".i",ft" bWfS, 

-rsing 
the previousl) discusse; criteria 'et fonh by CASB No 33 for non-exchange

ir-r*u"tlon., urt .uuj""t to uid t;-it"d fy tl! 
^uailabilirl 

criteria di:cnssed abo!e Accordingly, properry tax-and

municiDat license tax receivables are also generally recorded in the fiscat year when an enforceable legal clairn

il;;il";;,1";*".t1 iu, 
"na 

,rni.ipui license tax revenues (net olamounts con'idered not collectible) are

alsosenerallvrecordedinthetlscal}earwhenresourcesarerequiredtobeusedorthefirstfiscalyearthattheuse
;ft:;;;;;;:";i;*.in"a. n.""i'br.. *a 

'evenues 
rrom federal and state grants 'nd 

contributions' donations

^nJ"nt;ti.."nt. 
u." ulro gene.ally recorded when all eligibiligv requirements imposed by the provider have been

.", ig"".."iiy, ". 
qr"rif[g reimtursable expenditures are incurred for expenditure-driven grants)

Interests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both measurable and available

at June 30,2011.
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(continued)

Pusuant to the provisions of GASB InterpretationNo. 6, Recagnition dnd tledsttrement oJ certain Liabilities and

ii""iii"" in Gowmmental Funil Financial Srdremenls (GASBI No 6r, in the absence of an explicit

re{ irement (i.e., the absence ofan applicable modification. discussed belolv) the Municipality generally accrues

" d"r"*.."i"ii*a f;ubility and expe;diture (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utilities' etc ) in

iti p".ioJ in *f,i"l tf," gore-ment incurs the iiab;lity, io the extent that these liabilit;es are nomally expected to

t" tiquia"t"a in u ti."timanner and in full rvith current available financial resources. GASBI No. 6 modified the

.""ognition 
"rit".iu 

fo. 
"ertain 

expenditures and liabilities reported under the modified accrual basis ofaccounting

p.ioi o c,lse No. :+, and clarified a number ofsituations in which the Municipality should distinguish between

I"""a*..t"i n,.a liabilities and general long{erm Iiabilities Therefore, the accompanying balance sheer -
E"""*-"""f funds generally reflits only as;ets that will be converted into cash to satisry current liabiliiies'

iong-t"r* 
"r."t, 

una"*,ose aisets that rvill not be converted into cash to satisry current liabilities are generally rot

"".o'rni"a 
to. ;n tt 

" 
u"companying balance sheet govemmental funds At the same time' Iong_term liabilities

ig"n".utty, ttor" un-*"tu.id t-hut *ill not require the use of current financial resources to pay them) are not

a-ccountei for in ttre accompanying balance sheet - governmeltal funds'

Modifications to the accruat basis ofaccounting in accordance w;th GASB No' 6 include:

Principal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they mature (when payment is du9)l exceli for

pih"ipa *a int.."rt of bonds iue on July l, 2011, which are recorded as governmental fund liabilities at

irn":0. ZOt t which is the date when resources were available in th€ debt service fund'

Certain accounts payable intergovemmental payables aDd other accrued liab;lities not due and payable

(un-matured) or not normally expected to be ]iq;idated in full and in a timely manner with available and

expendable hnancial resources, are recorded inihe accompanying statement ofnet assets Such liabilities

are recorded in the governmental funds when they mature'

Executors purchase orders and contracts are recorded as a reservation of fund balance in the GFFS

The measurement focus of the CFFS is on decreases of flet financial resources (expenditures) rather.than

exoenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recor'led when the related governmental fund liability is

#;;. ;ii;;;;;;i.o,tr, ,u.t as depreciation and amortization are recorded in the accompanving

statement ofactivities, but are not recorded in the accompanying CFFS'

f) Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

' Budgetarv Control

The Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet Prepare annual .bud8et\ 
each fiscal year for the Municipalit)'s

g"".*i iir"a 
".a 

debt service fund. Such legaill adopted btrdgets- are. based on expected expenditures by

i.ogr". ura 
"sti.ut"a 

resources by source. Ttie annualtudgets are develope-d using elements ofperformance-

i^riJfio!."- Uragoing and zero-based budgeting, and inc'iude estimates ofrevenues and other resources for

ii" 
""iri.g 

fit""l ),!* ride. la*s and regulations Jxisting at the time the budgets are Prepared'
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MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 3O 2011
(continued)

The Mayor must submit for the fiscal year commencing on the next July l, an annual budgetary resolution

project (ihe project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs ofthe Commonwealth (the Commissioner) and

ine Uunicipal Legislature no later than May l0 and May 15, respectively. The Commissioner preliminary

verifies thai the pioject complies with all the applicable la\is and regulations and may provide comments and

suggestionsto the Mayoron or before June 13.

The Municipal Legislature has l0 business days, up to the immediately preceding June 13, to discuss and

approve the Projeci with modifications. The Municipal Legistature may amend the budgets submitted by the

Mayor but may not increase any items so far to cause a deficit without imposing ta-xes or identifying other

souices ofrevinue to cover such deficit. After the Municipal Legislature modifies and preliminarily approves

the project, the modified Projecl is sent back 10 the Mayor for his approval or rejection within 6 days. The

Mayor may decrease or eliminate any line item bu! may not increase or insert any new line item in the budgets.

rhe Mayor may also veto the budgets in their entirety and retum it to the Municipal Legislature with his

objections. Ifthe Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature will have up to 8 days to adopt or reject

thi recommendationi or objections ofthe Mayor. The approved Project is sent again to the Mayor, which then

would have 3 days to sign and approve it.

If the budgets are not adopted prior lo the end of the deadlines referred to above, the aflnual budgets for the

preceding-fiscal year, as approved by the Legistature and the Mayor, are automatically renewed for the ensuing

hscal yeir until the Muni;ipal Legislature and the Mayor approve new budgels. This permits the Municipality

to coniinue doing paymentafor its operations and other purposes until the new budgets are approved

The annual budgets may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end encumbrances, and

may include any additional information requested by the Municipal Legislature. The Mayor may request

sub:equert amendments to the approved budgets, which are subject to the approval of the Municipal

Legislature.

The Municipality,s Department of Finance has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary spending control ;s

maintained. For day-to:day management control purposes, expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed

budgeted amounts it the eipenditire-type )evel of each cost center (activity within a program within a fund).

The- Mayor may transier unencumbered appropriations u'ithin programs within funds The Municipal

Legislature may transfer amounts zlmong programs uithin and among funds-

The legal level ofbudgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriation)

is at thi functions/progam level within the general and debt service funds, respectively-

UnderthelawsandregulationsoftheCommonwealththeappropriationsmadeforanyfiscalyearshallnot
exceed the tota! revenue, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscal year unless the imposition of
taxes sufflcient to cover said apprcpriations is provided.

Budsetarv Accountine

The Municipality's annual budgets are plepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of accounting,

which is not in accordance with CAAP.
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According to the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue is generally recorded when cash is received. short-

term and long-term borrowings may be used to finance budgetary excess ofexpenditures over revenues'

The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase orders, contracts and

other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from the appropriation prior to actual exPenditure

ln the govemmental fund., 
"n"rrbr^r"" 

u".ounting is a significant aspect of budgetary control Accordingly,

expendltures are generally recorded rvhen the related expenditure is incuned or encumbered. Available

appropriations ard encumbrances are established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of the fiscal year'

Amounts required to seftle claims and judgments againsi the Municipality, and certain other liabilities, are not

recognized until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for payment. Unencumbered approPriations and

"n"u]-b.un"", 
lapsi at fiscal year-end. Other appropriations, mainly capital projects appropriations, are

continuing accou;ts for which the Mun;cipal Legislature has authorized that unspent balance from the prior

year be carried forward and made available for current spending.

The accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures -budget and actual -budgetary basis -generalfund,

provides i;fo;a;|oD about the general fund's original budget, its amendmenls, and the actual results of
ope.ations of soch govemmental iund under the budgetary basis of accounting for the fiscal year ended Juoe

30.2011.

g) Deposits and Investm€nts

Under puerto Rico statutes, public funds deposited in commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the

amount deposited in excess of federal depository insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by

the Secretary of the Treasury of Puerto Rico. In addition, the Municipalily maintains deposits with the

Govemment Development Bank for Puerto fuco (GDB)

TheMunicipality,sbankbalancesincommercialbanksof$?43,612inthegenefalfundwerefulty
collateralizeiatjune30,20ll. ln the other governmental funds there were depocifs with commercial banks

of $863,115 in Joint Resolutions Funds, $7,544 in Capital Project Funds, and $406,696 in other

govemmental funds, that were fully collateralized-

The deposits atGDB of $10,486,255, resrricted for capital projects, joint resolutions and for debt service,

areunsecure'danduncol]ateralized,asnocollateralisrequiredtobecarriedbygovemmentalbank.

Investments represents certificate ofdeposits in the following institutions:

$2,400,000
400.000

$2.800.000

Banco Popular de P.R.

Doral Bank ofP.R.
Total
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h) Accounts Receivable

Receivables consist ofall revenues eamed but not collected at June 30, 201 l. These accounts receivables are

stated net ol estimated altowances for uncollectible accounts, which arc determined based upon past

collection experience, hisiorical trends, current economic conditions and the periodic aging of accounts

receivable.

Activities among govemmental funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arangements outstanding

at the end of thi 
-fisca, 

year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e. the current portion of
inter-fund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e. the non-currert portion of inter-fund loans), as

applicable. Atl other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds"

Use of[stinrates

The preparation of the accompanying basic finaacial statements in conformity with GAAP requires

management to make significani estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabiliiies, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe basic financial statements, and

the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from

those estimates.

Inter-fund ActiYities

The Municipality has the followiig types of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter-fitnd activities recorded

among govemmenta, funds in the accompanying CFFSi

Inter-funal loans -Represent amounts prcvided with a requirement for repayment, which are recorded as

"due fiom" in the lender governmental fund and "due to" in the borrower govemmental fond lnter-fund

receivables. which are not considered to be currently available financial resources, are repolted as

advances. For amounts not expected to be collected within a reasonable period of time, inter-fund

receivables/payables are reducea to the estimated realizable value and the amount that is not expected to

be repaid is reported as an operating transfer from the govemmental fund that made the loan'

Inter-fund transfers - Represent flows of assets (permanent reallocation of financial resoulces among

govemmental funds) without equivalent flows of assets in retum and without a requircment for

rePa)T nent'

operating transfers are reported as other financing sources in the governmental fund making transfers and

as other financing sources in the governmental firnd receiving transfers'

Inter-fund reimbursements Represent repayments from the govertunental fund Iesponsible for

particular expenditures or expenses to the govemmental fund that initiatly paid forthem'

In the GFFS, inter-fund activity has not been eliminated, as permitted by GAAP'

)
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Description
Buildings
Infrastructure
Buildi[g and site improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

k) Capital Ass€ts

Capita] assets used in governmental activities include land and land improvements, buildings, structures and

building improrements, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, vehicle,, construction in progress.

and iniastructure. These assets are capitalizerl and reported in the accompanying statement of net assets'

lnfrastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and inctude roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks,

drainage systems and other similar assets.

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an individual cost of

$500 or more aithe dite oiacquisition, construction or improvement, and with useful Iives extending beyond

one year. All assets with inalividual costs under $500 or with useful lives no! exceeding one yeaq are charged

directly to expense in the government-wide statement of activities ln the govemmental funds, all capital

assets are recorded as capital outlays (expenditures).

In the statement of net assets, all capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost ifactual cost

was unavailable, except for doDated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date

ofdonation. Estimated historical costs based on deflated current costs were used to value a significant po(ion

ofthe infrastructure constrllcted or acquired prior to June 30, 2002 and certain lands, buildings, structures and

building improvements.

Majoroutlaysforcapitalassetsandimprovementsalecapitalizedinthestalementofnetassetsasprojectsare
co,istructed. The coits of normal maiirtenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset or materially

extend capital asset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation and amortization expense is reco.deal only in the government-wide statement of activities.

Ho'wever, there is no depreciation ;r amortization recorded for land and construction in progress. Depreciable

capitat a;sets are gener;lly depreciated or amortized over their estimated useful lives under the straight-line

method. The estimated useful lives ofmajor capital asset categories are:

Years
50
10
25
10

,7

Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used by the MuniciPality, if any' are reported at the lower of
carr-ving value or fair ualue. Impainnent losses on capital assets with physical damages that will continue to be

usej Uy_tte Uunicipatity are measured using the restoration cost approach._lmpairments ofcapital assets that are

.rU]j""i a 
" "f,ungJ 

in in. manner or durat:ion of use, or assets affected by enactment or approval of laws or

i"!"utution, o. ot6-er charges in environmental factors or assets that are subject to technological changes or

obsolescence, ifany, are meastred using the service units approach'
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m)

Def€ned Revenues

In the GFFS, deferred revenue arises when one ofthe following situations occur:

The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (unearned revenue)- In
subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for deferred revenue is

remo\ed and re!enue i5 recogni/ed.

Deferred revenues at the govemment-wide lev€l arise only when the Municipalit-v receives resources before it
has a legal claim to them.

Compensated Absetrces

Compensated absences are accounted for under the provisions of Statement No. 16, Accounting fot
Compensated Absence, issued by GASB (GASB No. 16). Compensated absences include paid time off made

available to employees in connection with vacation, sick lea\,e and compensatory time. The liability for
compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets is limited to leave that: (l) is

attributable to services already rendered on or before June 30, 2011 and (2) is not contingent on a specific

event that is outside the control of the Municipalify' and the employee (such as illness)- Compensated

absences that relat€ to future services or are contingent on a specific event outs;de the control ofthe employer

or the employee are accounted for in the period when those services are rendered or lhose events take place.

The liability for compensated absences includes salary-related costs, which are directly and incrementally

related to the amount of satary paid to the employee (such as employer's share of Social Security taxes and

Medicare taxes).

The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular vacations at a rate o12.5

days per month (30 days per year) per employee. Employees accumulate regular sick leave at a rate of 1.5

days per month (18 days per year). Employees accumulate compensatory time at a rate of 1.5 times the

overtime worked. All vacation and sick leave days accumulated by employees in excess of 30 days and 90

alays, respectively, are paid to employees each year, if not consumed, as .equired by law. In the case of
compensatory time, the excess of240 hours is paid to employees each year, ifnot consumed

Upon termination of employment, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid regular

vication leave at the current rate. ln the case of regular sick leave, if the employee terminates his or her

employment before reaching 10 years ofservices, such regular sick leave is not paid to the employee, ifnot
consumed. In addition upon termination of employment, an employee does not receive compensation for
compensatory time, ifnot consumed previously. After 10 years ofservices, any regular sick leave balance is

paid to the employee. Accumulated vacation time is fully vested to the employee at any time.

The liability for compensated absences is reported in the statement ofn€t assets. A liability for compensated

absences ii reported in the GFFS only when matured (when payment is due), for example' as a result of
€mployee resignations or retirements.
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n) Long-term Debt

The long term liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net assets include the Municipality's

bonds piyable, notes payable, accrLred compensated absences, and accrued legal claims andjudgments ifany'

Alllong'termdebttoberepaidfromgovemmentalresourcesisrepo(edasliabilitiesintheaccompanying
stateme-nt of net assets. principal and interest payments on bonds due on July 1, 20ll are recorded as

governmental Fund liabilities in the GFFS (debt sewice fund) when resources are available in the debt

iervice fund (June 30, 201 l). tn the GFFS, the face amount ofdebt issued (gross debt reported) is reported as

other finaDcing sources when issued.

Operating Leases

The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipment under several operating lease

agreements, which generally have terms of one year or less and are automatically renelved for the same

te-rms. Rental expenditures recorded in the general fund and in other govemmeotal funds for the year ended

June30,20lI,amouDtedto$2T,T68.Managementbelievesthatthesummaryofthefutureminimum
rentalcommitmentsun.lernoncancelablerealpropertyandequipmentleasewithtermsexceedingoneyear
is not significant.

Accounting for P€nsion Costs and Post_Employment Benefits

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint ofa participantin a multiple_employer cost'

sharing plan. Accordingly, peniion costs recognized in the accompanying basic financial statements are equal

to the itatutorily requiid contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required contributions

The govemment of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the

Elnplioy""r' Retirement System of the Govemment of Pueto Rico and its lnstrumentalities (ERS)

and System 2000, a mulii-emptoyer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan and a hybrid defined

contribution plan, respectively, in which the employees ofthe Municipality participate'

TheMunicipalityisconsialeredaparticipant,andnotasponsor,oftheseretircmentsystemssincethemajority
oiirr" puniJip_t, in the aforementioned pension tlust funds are emplolees of the_commonwealth of puerto

Rico aid theiasic financial statements ofsuch rehrement slstems are part ofthe luancial repodng entity of

the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Risk Management

The Municipalify carries commercial insurance covering casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses'

Insurance policies arc negotiated by the Commonwealth's Department of Treasury (the Department of

Treasury) on behalf of alimunicipaiities of Puerto Rico. The Department of Treasury pays the insurance

p.".ir.. on behalf of the Municipality and then is reimbursed each year through monthly equal payments

deductedfromtheMunicipality,sgrosspropertytaxcollectionsmadebytheMunicipalRevenuecollection
Center ("CRIM", by its Spunlh u".ony.i1, u govemmental entity responsible for billing and collecting

property taxes on behalfofall municipalities ofPue(o Rico.

o)

p)

q)
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The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily, injuries caused b) automobile accidents'

itri. ir.r."i"" is obtained through the Alutomobile Accidents Compensation Adm;nistration (ACAA)' a

""ap"".ri "ri "f 
rf," CommonwJalth. This insumnce is computsory for all Iicensed vehicles used on public

;;:;;igh*")'. in Puerto Rico. The annual premium is $15 per licensed motor vehicle' which is paid

directly to ACAA.

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance coverage through the State Insurance Fund

i".p"r"*"iirrcl 
" "omponent 

unit ofthe Commonweatth This insurance covers workers against ;njuries'

Ji.rit i y 
".'a*tfr'i*ause 

of work or employment_related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a

"or*Gr"" "iif,"i. "*ployment. 
Workers'iompensation insurance premiums are also paid through moDthly

deductions made by CRIM from the Municipality's gross properry tax collections-

The Municipality obtains unemployment compenration, non_occupational disabiliq' and divers' insumnce

;;;."g" i"; itJ 
"-ploy"". 

thiough rarious insurance programs administered by the commonwealth's

i"p"ni"".a oi roU'. -a HumaIi Resources (DOL) Tiesi insurance progtams cover workers against

unJmployment and proviale supplementary insurance coverage^for temporary disability' or death because of

*o.['o. ".aproy."nt-.elated a;;idents or-because of illness suffered as a consequence oftheir employment

Unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly

h DOL on a coct retmbursement ba)i\.

The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from several health insurance companies lor its

"-pf.v"".. 
blff"** health insurance coverage and piemium optrons are negotiated each year by the

6"i"ri""", off.**y on behalfofthe Municipaliry ihe cunent insurance policies hav€ not been canceled

or terminated at June 30, 201 1.

r) Reservations ofFund Balances

Reservations of fund balances represent portions offund balances in the GFFS that are legally segregated for

snecific future ur.t orur. no, uppropriaied lor expendirure' ln March200q the Co\emmenhl Accounlirrg

il,"a-,;. ii"*a lc^seii..;.i base s+ in an eiffort to impro,,e rhe consistency i reporting fund balance

;#;ffi. ;;;f;J;;;";. presentation improve the usefulness of fund balance information and

clarii the definition ofthe govemmental fund types

In summary, GASB 54 introduces entirely new terminology and classification of fund balances in

g"""--."t'i i*a,. This new standard also establishes a hierarchy of fund classifications as follows:

Non-spendable amounts: That is, the fund balance which cannot be spent as they are associated with

urr"ti'.u"tt ua inu"ntory, prepaid expenses, long term receivables or permanent fund priocipal'
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Spendable amounts: These amounts can be spent, but are classified based on the relative strength of
c;nstains that control the purposes for wh;ch specific amounts can be spent. Beginning rvith the most

binding con.rraint'. lhese cla..ifi car ions are:

Restricted Fund Balance: This balance represents amounts that are constrained for a specific

pr.po.. tt"ougl1 ."tttictions of extemal parties (i.e. creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or

iegulations ofothet govemments), or by constitutional provisions or enabling legis'ation, pursuanl to

th; definit;on of"restricted" iD para$aph 34 ofGASB 34, as amended by CASB 46'

CommittedFunilBalance:Thisbalancerepresentsamountsthatareconstrainedforspecific
prrp"a", 

".p*.d 
by 

^ 
f".-al action ofthe government's highesl level ofdecision making authority

ii_e. amounti that have been committed by a governing body legislation, ordinance or resolution ior a

ipecific purpose). Furthermore, fund balances cannot be sued for other purpose unless the

govemment used the same acting it took to originally commit the amounts'

AssisnedFundBalapce:Thisbalancerepresentsamountsthatareconstrainedbythegovemment's
;;;i;-b" ,."d f* 

" 
.pecific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed lntent should be

expressed by (1) the governing body itself (2) a body (e.g. a budget committee) or officiat to whom

the governing body has delegited authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes The

keyiistinctiin between corimitted and assigned is that committed monies arc set by the highest

authority (i.e. the board) and such restrictions can only be removed by this authority'

Unassigned Fund Balance: This bala[ce represents the residual mounts for a government's General

Fund: ii includes atl amounts that are not classified in the previous three categories ( restricted'

committedandassigned).FurthermoreonlytheGeDeralFundcanreportunrestrictedfundbalance'
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2, Credit Risk

The fo[owing is essential information about credit risk, interest rate risk, custodial credit risk' and foreign

exchange expisure ofdeposits and investments ofthe Municipality at June J0' 201 I :

creditriskThisistheriskthatanissuerorothercounterpart}toaninvestment\'illnotfulfillits

"tfgrti".- 
l" compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico' the

Mun;cipality has aaopted, as its custodial credit risk policy, the Statement of UniJorm Investment

Guidetines for the iunicipalities of the Com onv"edlth of Puerto Rico' bsued by the Goverllnent

De,elop-eit Bank Jor puerto Rico. Accordingly, rhe Municipaliry-is 
-only 

allowed to invest in

"Ufig";".. 
.f the 6ommonwealth of Puerto Rico, obligations of the tlnit€d States of Americ4

certi'ficates of dePosit, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances or in-pools of obligations of the

Municipalities of iuerto Rico, rvhich are managed b] cDB Accordingro the aforementioned investment

guia"iii"., ttr" Municipality is nol allowed io invest in marketable secu ties or any other type of

i"nrestmenis (debt securitiesj for which credit risk exposure may be significant Conseque[tly' at June 30'

20Il and foi the fiscal year then ended, the Municipality invested only in certificates of deposit in

commercial banks, which are insured by the Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC), generally up

to a maximum of b250,000 per depositor. No investments in debt of€quity securities were made during

the fiscat year ended June 3b,20il_ Therefo.e, ttre Municipality,s management has concluded that the

credit risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's

deposits is considered low at JuDe 30, 201 l.

Int€restmterisk.Thisistheriskthatchangesinintereslratesofdebtinvestmentswilladverselyaffecr
thi-fui. uotu" ot 

"n 
inrestment. The Municipility manages its exposure to declines in fair values by: (1)

not including debt or equity investments in its investments portfolio at June 30' 2011' (2) limiting the

*"igir"a 
"tE "g. 

."r.ity ofit. inuest."ntt in certificates ofdeposit to periods ofthree months or less

and_(3) keepirig most oi its banks deposits and certificates of dep-osit in interest bearing accounts

g"""i"iit g iir"i*, at prevailing markit rates as required by the Stutement oJ Untlorm hNestment

Zuidelini for the Minicipalitis of the Comnonwealth o/ Pueno Rico issued by the Govemment

DerelopmeitBank/orPiertoRlca(theadoptedpolic)ofthe-Municipality)AtJune30'2011'the
interesi rate risk as;ociated with the lviunicipaiity,s cash and cash equivalent is considered low since the

investment portfolio of the Municipali[ consiits of cenificates of deposit and do not include debt

securities or any type of investments ih at could be affected b1 changes in interest rates'

Custodial credit risk - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the- event of a bank failure' the

M-ri"lput,tyt a"por;ta may not be recovered' Pursuant to the s/a'ement of Int'estmenl Guidelines for lhe

Go*ri^"ni o7 tW Comninweahh of Pueflo Rico' the balances deposited iD commercial banks by the

Municipality are insured by the Fideral Deposit Insurance Corporation 
. 
(FDIC)' geoerally up to a

.a*i.u. ot $ZSO,OOO per deposito,. ln addiiion' public funds deposiled in commercial banks by the

Municipality are fully iollateralized for the amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository

;n.r.un'.". atl securities pledged as cotlateral are held in the Municipality's name by the agents of the

Commonwealth's Secret,rry ofTreasury. Deposits ofGDB, are uninsured and uncollateralized' However'

no losses related to defaults by GDB on ieposit transactions have been incurred by the Munic;paliR

through June 30, 2011. It is management's po-licy to only maintain deposits in banks affiliated to FDIC to

minimize the custodial crcdit risk, except for GDB' 
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Therefore. the Municipalitv's management has concluded that at June 30,2011, the custodial credit risk
associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreign erchange risk -This is the risk that changes in exchange rates \\ill advenely affect the value of
an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, adopted by the

Municipalit), the Municipali0 is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other tvpes of
investments for which foreig, exchange dsk exposure may be significant. Accordingly, management has

concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the lvlunicipalit]'s deposits is considered low at June

10.201t.

3. Prop€rty Taxes

The personal property tax is selfassessed by the taxpayer on a retum which is to be filed by May 15 of each

year with the CRIM, a govemmental entity created by the govemment of Puerto Rico as part ofthe Municipal
Governmental Autonomy Laws of August 1991. Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of
real €state and on each building.

The assessment is made as of January 1 ofeach year and is based on current values for personal property and

on estimated values as of 1957 for real property ta,x. The tax on personal property must be paid in full together

with the return by May I 5- The tax on real property may be paid in two installments by July I and January l.
Thr CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf ofall the

municipalities of Puerto fuco. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs the Municipaiity

ofthe estimated amount of propent'tax expected to be collected for the ensuing fiscal year. Throughout the

year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the initial estimated collections. The CRIM is

required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made

between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This

settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis Dot later than three months after fiscal year_end, and a

final settlement made not laler than six months after year-end. If the CRIM remits to the Municipality

property ta,r advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable from the CRIM is recorded

at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CRIM, a defeffed revenue is

recorded at June 30.

On January 26, 2000, Public Law 42 was enacted wbich authorized the CRIM to obtain a loan up to $200

million, and for a rerm not exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing ofthe debt that the Municipalities of
Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of property ta"x advances compared to actual

collections through fiscal year 1999-2000. The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from the

additional property taxes resulting from the inc.eases in the subsidy from the central Government to the

Municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the result of
the Public Law 238, enacted on August I5, 1999.

.13



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 3O 20ll
(continued)

On December 3, 2002, the Muoicipalit) enlered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico

for the repayment of excess property tax advances determined in $1,133,772- AsofJune 30, 20ll,the
related unpaid property ta,x advances presented in the statement ofnet assets amounted to $986,441 andis
payable in periodic iNtallments as determined by the CRIM in a 30 years period until l.lly 1,2032' at

variable interest rate (Law 42 of2000 as ammended by law 146 of200l).

Residential real properry occupied by its owner is exempt b)' law from the payment of property taxes on the

first $15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the Puerto Rico Treasury Department

assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for property assessed at less than SJ,500 for
which no payment is made- As part of the Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be

paid by the ftlerto Rico Treasury Department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January l, 1992. In

addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment ofpersonal property ta,\es ofup to 550,000 ofthe

assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $150,000.

The annual tax rate for fiscal year 2010_2011 is 9.83% for real property and 7.83% lor personal property of
which 1.03% of both ta-\ rates are for the redemption ofpublic debt issued by the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 8 80% and 6.80%, respectively, represents

the Municipality's basic propen)_ tax rate which is appropriated for basics and accounted for in the geDeral

fund- A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization fund together with a percentage of the net

rcvenues ofthe Puerto Rico electronic lottery and a subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From

such fund, a distribution is made to all municipalities; (b) 1.67% represents the ad valorem tax restricted for

debt service and accounted for in the debt service fund. The Commonwealth also contrib!(es an annual tax

rate of0.2% ofthe Property tax collecled and such amount is accounted for similar to item (a) above.

4. Mrnicipal Lice[se Taxes

The Municipality is authorized to impose and coltect municipal license taxes to any natural or legal person

having tradi or business activities *ithin the territory of COROZAL. This is a self-assessed tax generally

based-on the business volume of taxpayers, measured by gross revenues. The Municipality establishes the

applicable tax rates. At June 30, 201 l, the municipal license tax rates imposed by the Municipal;ty $ere l' 50

percent for financial institutions and 0.50 percent for other types oftaxpaye.s.

Each taxpayer must assess the corresponding municipal license ta.x by declaring the volume of business

thrcugh ;6x return to be filed every April 15, based on the actual volume ofbusiness (revenues) generated in

the pieceding calendar year. T&\payers with a sales volume of $3 million or more must include audited

financial statiments with their tax return filings. The tax can be paid by the taxpaler in two equal installments

due on July 15 and January 15, subsequent to the filing ofthe declaration on April I5 The first installment of
the tax covers the six,month period ended December ll. subsequent to the filing date of the declaration,

t,,hile the second installment ofthe lax covers the six,month period ended June 30 ofthe subsequent calendar

year.lfataxpayerelectstopaythetaxinfullonthefilingdateofthedeclaration(generallyAprill5),a5
percent discouni is g.unted automatically on the total tax amount due. Municipal license tax revenues for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 20l I amouDted to $1,122,259 in the accompanying financial statements'
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Any municipal license taxes collected in advance (that is, pefiaining to a future fiscal year) are recorded as

deferred revenues. Unearned municipal license tax revenues recorded in the accompanying GWIS and GFFS

amounted to $744,733 at June 30, 2011. This amount represents the municipal license taxes corresponding to
fiscal year endiDg June 30, 201 I that were collected in advance during the last quarter of the curr€nt fiscal
year, as required by law.

5. Sales and Use Taxes

The Municipality imposes a sales and use t&x pursuant to the provisions of the Puerto Rico Intemal

Revenue Code, as arnended. The ta\ consists ofone percent (1.0%) on the sales price of taxable

items or on the purchase prices of all usage, storage, or consumption of taxable items, excluding
wholesales. The sales and use ta-\ is a self-assessed tax collected by the Municipality through
monthly ta\ retums due on the twentieth day ofthe immediate following month. The tax retums are

frled by the respective businesses that are required by law to withhold the tax from consumers on

each taxable product or seNice. Sales and use ta-x revenues amounted ro $1,422,681 for the fiscal year

ended June 30. 201 l.

The commonweatth of Puerto Rico imposes a separate state sales and use tax of 0.5%, which is imposed and

collected by the Puerto Rico Treasur) Department through monthly tax return due on the hventieth day ofthe
immediate following month. This 0.5% tax is administered by the Govemment Development Bank of Puerto

Rico for the following purposes: (l) 0.2% is deposited in the new "Municipal Debt Service Fund", strictly for
granting loans to the municipalities ofPuerto fuco; (2) 0.2% for the creation ofthe "Municipal Development

Fund" percentage, which will be distributed among all municipalities pursuant to a statutory formula; and (3)

0.1%, for the creation of the "Permanent Improvements Fund", to be distributed by the Legislature ofthe
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to carry out public uorks and permanent improvement projects iD the

municipalities of Puerto fuco.

6. Intergovernmental Receivables and Payables

Due from otber governments - in the general fund principally consist of the amounts due from the

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority ("PREPA") $1,567,348. This represents the amount resulting

from the revenues the Municipality is entitled to receive in lieu ofpayment ofta-xes; and $150,000 due

from Puerto Rico Govemment for reimbursement of employee benefits.

b. Due from other government - ir the other governmental funds are the following:

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) $ 67,915

Commonwealtb of PR- Office of Municipal Affairs (SBGP) 61,168

Commonwealth of PR - Department oflabor (Law 52 ) 112,435

Common\,lealth of PR Elderly Commission (Title Ill-C) 9'7,56'7

US Department ofHousing al1d Urban Development (Housing) 40.880

$.139.965
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c. Due to other governmental units ofthe general

consists of the following:

PR Electric Power Authori!,
PR Retirement System

PR ueneral Sen rces Admini.lrarion
PR Se$er and Sanilan Aurhorit)
PR workmen CompeD-aIlon Corporation
PR Treasury Department

fund for services rendered to the Municipality

$1,567,348
64,933

4,243

15,004

24,046

$1.679.433

7. Inter-fundTmnsactions

lnter fund .eceivables and payables atJune 30, 201I are summarized as follows:

FI]ND

General

Other Governmental
Joint Resolutions
Capital Project
Total

DUE FRONI DUE TO

$1,575,517
439,965

$2.015.482

$ 439,965

206,101

512,947

856.469

s2.015.,182

Inter-fund receivables and payables represent the pending settlements of the aforementioned transfers,

which are considered by management to be fully realizable at June 30, 201 l.

I)eferred Revenues

Deferred revenues recorded in the accompanying GWFS and the GFFS are as follows:

a.Gen€ral Fundl

Deferred revenue of$744,733 in the general fund is related to municipal license tax collected

in fiscal year 2010-2011 thal will be earned in fiscal year 201 1-2012.
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Program Description
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

FEMA
Elderly Title III
SBGP

HOPWA
Federal Agriculture
Homeless Prevention

Total

b, Other GoverDmental funds:

F€deral Government The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds

represent the portion of federal grants received for rvhich qLralifying expenditures have not

been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal govemment are as follows:

$ 118,135

47,747

55,070

18,701

3,811

14,958

36.003

$ 294.449

9. Long-Term Obligations

a) The general long{erm debt activiry for the fiscal year ended June 10, 2011 is as follows:

Borrowings Payments

Beginning or or Ending

Balance Addition Deduction Balance
Due within
One year

Bonds payable $11,000,000 $2,515,000
Notes payable 705,000
Advances CRIM - Law 42 1 007,986
Advances CRIM Law 146 243,925
Advances CRll\,4 - other 33.271

12,990,182

Leoalclaims 350,000 200 000 350.000
Co-moensared absences 1,9!O E5O '09.45J

$1s.28 0r2 $2-984153 $ 844.486

s 405,000 $13,110,000 $505,000
35.000 670,000 35,000
21.545 S86,441 22,899
11.087 232,838 11,087
21,A54 11.417 11-417

15,010 696 585 403

200.000 200,000
2110.303 150.000

$17.320.999 $935.403

Historically, the general fund has been used to liquidate certain notes payable, compensated ahsences federal

cost disallowances and any other long_term liabilities other lhan bonds.
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b) Bonds Payabl€

- The Municipality issues general obligation, special obligation and public improvement bonds to finance the
acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to finance certain operaling needs,

_ including the payment to supplien in certain circumstances.

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico provide that the Municipality's public debt
will constitute a first claim on the available revenue ofthe Municipnlity. Public debt includes bonds and bood
anticipation notes. The good faith, credit and taxing power ofthe MunicipaliR are irrevocably pledged for the
prompt payment ofthe principal and interest ofbonds.

- For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding batances ofbonds represent the total principal to be repaid.

Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30, 201 l:
Outstanding

amount

Ge4sI3lqbllgele4-Eesb:
$1,310,000 - 2002 serial bonds due in annual installments

of$20,000 to $115,000, through July 1,2026;

with interest ranging from2.ly.to 5.60A

$1,310,000 - 2008 municipal general obligation bonds

due in annual installmeDts of$10,000 to $90,000, through

July 1, 2033; (USDA) with interest at 4.875%

$1,320,000 - 2002 serial bonds due in annual installments

of$20,000 to S115,000, through July 1,2026;

with intercst ranging frorn 4.1'7oA to 5.3lyo

$ 1,06s,000

1,250,000

r.090.000

$4?0,000 - 2005 serial bonds due in annual installments

of$10,000 to $30,000, through July t,2029;

with interest mnging from 1-21% to 5.31% 405,000

$2,010,000 - 2011 special obligalion bond due in annual

Installments of$30,000 to $175,000 through July t, 2033

with variable interest at 1.5% over prime 1,950,000

$715,000 - 2006 serial bonds due in annual installments

of$90,000 to $125,000, through July l, 201 1;

with interest ranging fiom 3.27yo to 4.620/. 125,000
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$805,000 - 2011 special obligation bond due in annual

_ Installments of$25,000 to $85,000 through July l, ?024 with

! variable interest at 1.5% over prime with a minimum of6-0% 780,000

$2,515,000 2010 specialobligat;on bond due in annual

Installments of$65,000 to $i40,000 through July l, 2035 r'ith
variable interest at 1.5% over prime with a minimum of 6.5% 2,515,000

$3,420,000 - 2011 municipal general obligation bonds due in

annual installments of$80,000 to $315,000, through July 1, 2029

with variable interest at 1.5% over prime with a minimum of6-0% 1,140,000

Bonds payable from the Geoeral Furd:

$305.000 - 2005 se al bonds due in annua! installments

of$25,000 to $40,000, through July 1, 2014;

with interest at 5.0% 140,000

$505,000 - 2005 serial bonds due in annual installments

of $l0,000 to $40,000, through July 1,2030;

with interest at 5.0o%

Total bonds payable

Not€s payable The proceeds of the issuance of notes payables were used principally to the

acquisition and improvement of major capital assets. Notes payable outstanding at June 30,
201I are as follows:

Outstandirg
Amount

$510,000 serial03-09 loan payable (USDA) in

Annual installments of$10,000 to $40,000 through

July 1, 2033 with interest at 4.875%, payable fiom

operational fund

$400,000 - special loftery fund loan payable in

quarterly installments of$10,000 to $40,000,

thrcugh July l, 2016; with interest at 5.0%

payable from opemtional fund

Total notes payable

Total bonds and notes payable

490,000

.150.000

$ ]]. 0.000

180-000

670.000

$ 13.780.000
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variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by CDB and are based on the
fluctuation ofGDB'S weighted average rate for its commercial paper progmm. Under this program,

GDB issues commercial paper: (l) in the taxable and tax-exempt markets of the United States of
Americ4 (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to corporations having tax exemptions under the

Commonwealth's Indushial lncentiv€s Acts.

Annual debt service requirements ofmaturity for bonds and notes payable are as follows:

Year [nding
Jun€ 30,
2012
2013

2014
2015

20 r6
)r)17_))

2023-27
2028-31

2032-36

Total

Principal
$ 540,000

440,000

475,000
490,000

480,000

2,730,000
3,475,000

1,250,000
1.900.000

$13.780.000

Interest
$ 706,816

808,250
782,515

755,200
'72',7,253

3,168,144
2,1',79,354

1,013,i34
2t5.434

$r 0.356.320

At June 30.2011, accrued interest payable on bonds and notes amounted to $342,610. which are

recorded in the debt service fund and the statement ofnet assets.

c. Advances from- CRIM'-.This amount represents the balance owed to CRIM at June 30, 2011

which will be repaid through a financing obtained by the CRIM with GDB, as authorized by law and as

explained in this Note. The original debt of $1,113,772, of Law 42 ard $277,186 of Law 146 is

amortized in periodic installments as scheduled belou the balance due under Law 146 is payable as

determined by the CRIM during a l0 years p€riod until July 1,2012, LIMS balance is payable until
2012- with variable ;nterest rate.

At June 30, 2011, accrued interest payable on advances from CRIM amounted to $31,150, which are

recorded in the debt service fund and the statement ofnet assets.
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Annual debt service requirements to matu ty for Advances from CRIM are due as follows:

Year Ending
Jun€ 30,
2012
2013
20t4
2015
2016
20t 7 -21

2022-2.6
202'1-31
2032-33

Total

LIMS
Principal
$ r 1,417

$ r r,417

Larr l{6
Prircipal
$ 11,087

l 1,087
11,087
11,087
I I,087
55,435
55,435

I 1.098

$232,8i8

L^w 42
Principal
$ 22,899

24.13',7

25,866

29,219
176,052
238,',762

323,808
I18.006

$ 986,441

51

Interest
$ 7s,509

71,041
10,823
68,508
66,090

290,149
210,199
107,910

8.065

$ 910,294

d. Comp€nsateal absences - The government \r'ide statement of net assets includes $2,110,303 of

accrued sici leave benefits and accrued vacation benefits and related employer payroll cost, represenling

the Munjcipalit)'s commitment to fund such costs from future operations.

NOTE 10. CA?ITAL ASStrTS

Capital assets: those with an estimated useful live of five years or more from the time of acquisition by

tlJ Uunicipaiity and a cost of $500 or more, are primarily Funded through the issuance of long-tem

tonJ. -a ioan.. A summary oFcapitat assets and changes occurring in current year, including those

"h"ng", 
fo. infrastructure and conitruction in-progress pursuant to the implementation of CASB

SE;ent No. 34, follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciarion:
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Capllal a$ets rctivi! tbr the jlscallear ended Jun' l0 ' 201 I

Govemtnertal ActivitiB:

Capital dset. not beinS depreciated:

Land

Conslrucdon in Progress

Total capital assels not being depreciated

Capital dsets, being depreciated:

Buildings md blildiDg improvemenls

Site improlements

Equipment

Tobl capihl assets bein8 deprec;ated

Less accumulated depr€ciatioo for:

Buildings and building imProvemenrs

Site improvements

Equipmeni

Total accumulaed depreciation

Tohl capital assets being depreciated. net

Gov€rnmeDtal ,ctivities ctpitil assets' nel

Busitress TyPe Activity:

Capital 6set. rcl being depreciated:

Capital asseis, being dep.eciated:

Buildings ed building improvemenB

Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and buildinS inprclements

Total accumulated deprecialion

Toral capital assets being depreciared, net

Brsiress Typ. ActiviE Capittl assets' ret

Totil Municipllity Capiial sssets' net

$ 444,367

5,531,562

249,600
l1?,t80

5,900,342

I t0,672 1,21'1.384

79 249,208

ll 718 9].744

122.408 1,560,115

(122,468) 4,340.007

r I r22.,168r $ 4,784,174

$, r 0r7 156 S 42.49S,082

June 2010

$ r0,74,1.569

3.864,467

14,609.036

19,1t0.549

1,431,376

10.484,644

954,636

6,121.598

19,102,803

5,394,558

944,483

5.876,075

581,926

4,399.911

17,196.955

21,905.848

!,36111,881

(1,020.415)

(3,020.415)

3.214,370

r05,954

2.690,153

83,827

173.284

6,267,?88

380.459

69,544

1.248,095
'1t,12',1

178,204

2,047,529

4.220-259

$ r.lqa,824

June 201I

$ 10,744,569

844,032

l !,588,601

22,324,919

2,537,310

13.174,997

1,038,163

6.294,882

5,715,417

r,014,027

1,124,110

653.153

4,6',18,t t7

19,244.484

26,126,10'l

!ll444q

$ 444,367

5,5r3.562
249,600
I17.180

5,900.342

1.106,712

249,r29
82,026

1.437,86'.1

4,462.415

$ 4,906,842

\___4t.42)!29
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11. f,mployees' R€tirement Systems

The Employees' Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its Instrumentalities (the Retirement

iyr,"-l'i, i 
"on 

,fr-i"g multiile employer defined ben€fil pension plan sponsored by' and reported as a

"i-pon*t 
unit oftn" dommonwealti\ ofPuerto Rico' All regular employees of the Municipality under

ii fiars ofage at *re aate ofemployment become members ofthe Retirement System as a condition to

their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to legislation enacted

by the Commonrvealth;s tegislature. Disability retirement benefits are available to members for

occupational and no occupatio=nal disabilities. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and the

number ofyears ofcreditable service Benefits lest after ten years ofplan participation'

Memberswhohaveattained55yearsofageandhavecompletedatteast25yearsofcreditab]eserviceor
."*u"., *to have attained 5d y"".. of"g" and have completed ten years of creditable service are

entitled to an annual beoefit payable month,y for life'

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent ofthe average compensation' as defined'

..i +il"a Uv the number of years of creditable service up to twenfy years' plus two percent of the

uffi" 
"o.p"rt"tior, 

as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in excess of

20 years. ln no case will the annuity be less than $200 per nonth'

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to rcceive the Merit

ArLnuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent of the average

"".p.i*ii.", 
as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of^the average compensation as

a"i,ri"a. N" benefits are payable if the participant receives a refund of his /her accumulated

conkibutions.

Commonwealth legislation requires elnployees to contribute 5'775% for the first$550 of their monthly

gross salary and 8)75% for the excess over $550 ofmonthly gloss salary' The Municipality is required

iv *" ,urn'" uu,ut",o 
"ontribute 

9.275% ofthe participant's gross salary' Total contributions during the

year ended June 30, 2011 amounted to $356,003.

on senremher 24. 1999. an amendment to Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951' which created the Retirement

;';;.;;';"iJ;ith the purpo"e oi e'tabli'hing a nerr pen<ion program r svsiem 2000 ) tmplo)ees

;;;'i"iput;; il;;;t sys'tem as of Dece*ber li, 1999, ma1 elect to sta, in the defined benefit plan

i.iiurii".,lo ,fr" n"* program. Persons.joining the Municipalrly on or after January 1' 2000' will only be

"ifo*"Jio 
b""".".".b-ers ofSystern'2000' System 2000 will reduce the retirement age from 65 years

to 60 for those employees whojoined the current plan on or after April 1' 1990'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 201I
(Continued)

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contibution plan, also kno\n as a.cash^batance.plan Underthis new

pL", ,rr"." *i be a pool of pension utt"t', *iith ' ill be inlested by ERS' together with those of the

!ur..nia"nn"a U"n"nt plan. ihe Common*ealth ofPuerto Rico will not guarantee benefits at retirement

"g".ii;" """rr,y 
*iiL u:, based on a formula rvhich assumes that each year the employee's contribution

ii,lrr ".i"i--. "ft.z75% 
of the employee's salary up to a maximumof 10oz) will be invested in

an account which will either: (1) eam a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury

N"" 
"., 

tjl "r- " 
*" equal toi5% of the retum ofthe ERS'S investment portfolio (net ofmanagement

i;;rjl;;i3;*.. 
" ""rnbi;ation 

ofboth alternatives Participants witlreceive periodic account statements

.i*ii^.," ir,*" of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability pensions will

noit" g.unt"o ona". system 2000 The employers' co-ntribution (9 275% ofthe employee's salary) will

be used to fund the current Plan-

Additional information on the Reiirement system is provided in its financial statements for the yeal

""JJllr* :0. 2011, a copy ofwhich can'be obtainid from the Retirement System' Minillas Station'

P.O. Box 42005, San Juan, PR 00940.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

The Municipality is defendant in various tegal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to the

.".rn..un.. of routine governmental operatins' Uoder Public Act No' 104 of June 25 1955' as

;"il;: ;;";";;;; ;;tio,ir"a to ru" tt" tvI*icipalitv onlv for causes ofactions set forth in said Act

i"-. .",.iirr. amount of $75,000 or $150,000 ii it invotves acrions for damages to more than one

""rsnn 
o. *tt"." u a;n*te iniured party is entitled to several causes ofaction lt is management's opinion'

;H ; ;;;il ;iiiJi.grr'1"**r, tt'" the potential claims against the Municipalitv not covered

iy i*u.-"" *itt not .ateriall-y affect the financial condition of the Municipality'

The Municipality has reported, outstandins encumbrances amounting to $100'04'+ in the general fund at

jrr"-:0,-i6r i.'rrl" Iur-rnicipatity intendf to honor these encumbrances' which will continue to be

i;ilil ,;;;. ;i; "i..*, v"u.i. u,asJ auting a lapse perio'l that extends into the subsequent fiscal

year,

The Municipality has outstanding corlstnrction project commitments amounting to approximately

i"Ori,"z" l, i*. J0. 20ll foirhe ton'n'"rio'i and or imp'orem'nt of lhe con!enrion cenrer'

il;;;il;.;,;il'; p*i, n .'"utionui Facilities' Inirastructure and other construction projects'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20ll
(Continued)

The MuniciDalirv receives financial assistance from the federa' Govemments of the United States of

^..ri"r'"^i 
,tJ c",nr;;";;iih i; rhe torm of granr" and enrirlemenr\. Receipt o[.granr: is generalll

:il;;;;p;, compliance with terms and con-ditions of the grant agreements and applicable fedeml

f"*, -J *gtf"ri"ra, including the expenditure of resources for eligible purposes Accordingly'

ernendirures lLnanced b\ these program\ are subject lo financialand compliance auditr b) lhe approprixte

"iri",. 
or."ir"""".. "i 

a re'uit oithe" audirs ma1 betomeliabrlitie'oftheMunicipalitr'

The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipment under several operating lease

,"...""it,'Jilr, g"reratly have terms of onJ lear,or tess and are automahcally renewed for the same

L".-.. *".h 
"*p"n'ditu."s'.."o.d"d 

in the general fund and in other govemmental funds for the year

..i"J fr"":0. )011, amornted to $27,?6i' Management believes that the summary of the future

.ini.u.."nur commitments under non cancelable real propertv and equipment lease with terms

exceeding o,re year is not significant.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

BUDCETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OII

BIIDCETED ANIOUNTS

ORICINAL

VARIANCE WITH

ACTUAL TINAL BUDGf,T

AMOUNTS Positive{Nesativ€)FINAL

RESOURCf,S (inflows):

Propety Taxes

Volume of Business Taxes

Govemment of P.R. Contributions

Contributions h liew of taxes

Sale and use tax

Construction Tax

Charge for s€rvices

Reni

Other

Amounts available for appropriations

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (out flows)r

Municipal Concil

Mayor ofiice
Finance

Health
Emergency management

Municipal Police

Personnel

Sports and recreation

Sanitation

Elderly Centers

Municipal Secretary

Public Relations

I ernal Auditor
Purchases Deparinent
Planning and DeveloPment

Vice-Mayor
Citizen HeIp
Historical Turistic Center of Cibuco

Recicling

Total charges to approPriations

Excess (deficiency) reso0rces over charges

66,000

11,173.182 12.257,696 12.l'18'091 90,397

't,'126.720 s
1,100,000

5,34',7.041

r,639,915
1,000,000

340.000
228.500
r25,000
200,000

154.058

579,9r8
4,599,r68
2,0 t3,432

412,653
316,046
530,187

146,816
456,',770

1,190,s33

164,',l26

\20,761
l;6,869
79,433

106,499

58,839

43,229

182,36I
319,028

t,126.720
I,100,000
5,3,12,819

1,639,91s

1,083,800

352,262

261.802
163.000

21&,126

r,654,878
1,132,9',14

5,43r,8s0
1.56',7,348

1,085,004

360,390
274,65s
t'72,265
355,175

113,462
490,1I6

5,110.713
r,853,215

458,331

222.457
4t4,521

?5,689

466,329
t,032,173

I14,839
109,185

267,04',1

66.985

75,531

38,782

2r),442

142,999
217.131

61,671

$ (71,842)

89,031

(72,561)
I,204
8,128
9,853

9,26s
'71,049

154,058
493.700

s,863,099
1.856,7 76

4',72.653

229,03',7

423,8',76
't8,660

466,6\5
I,036,020

1r 5,r39
I09,185
261,20',7

67,08s

38,782
21,001

r43,958
2',77.584

40,596
3,584

152,386

3,56t
14,322

6,580

9,35s
2,911

286

3,847
300

160

,01

559
959

44',7

59

accompanying not€s are

See

'11.796 67,710

11.773,182 12,25'1,696 12,017,624 240'072

q ' s ll04o9 $ ll0'46c

integral part of the financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

BT]DGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ruNE .]0. 2OI I

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

ORIGINAL FINAL

VARLA.NCE WITH

ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET

AMOUNTS Positive(NePative)

RxSOURCES (inflows):

Properry Taxes

Sales Ta.{es (IVU)

Ifterest

Other

Amounts available for appropriations

s 508.818 s 508,818

508.818 508.818 1,262'561 '153.143

s 920,174

340,269

2,118

s 411,356

340,269

2,118

CHARCES TO APPR0PRIATIONS (out flows):

Long term loan amoniz2tion

Interest on long term debt

Transfer of interest eamed to Geneul Fund

Other - reserve

Total charges to aPpropriations

Excess (deficiency) resources over charges

24s,000

195,543

68.215

245,000

195,543

328,400

3'17.919

l,l67

(83,,100)

(r82,i76)

(1,167)

68.215

(198,668)

$ s5s.075 $ t5s,075

The accompanying notes are ;ntegml part of the financial statements'

See auditofs repon'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCIIEDUI'E
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

NOTf, 1. STEWARDSI P, CO]i{PLIAI{CE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A Budgetary Control

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting' which is not

in accordance with GAAP, and represents departmental appropriations recommended by the

U"y.. u"J 
"pp."r"a 

ty the Municipal Legislature prior ro the. beginning of the fiscal -year'

a.'"na-"n,i'to the budget requi'e the a-'pproval of the Municipal Legisl'hrre' Transfers of

,ppi.p.i"t;"* within th;budg;L known as-Mayor's Resolutions' do not require the approval of

the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations ofthe general fund'

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used The encumbrances (i'e'' purchase

o.d".., iont u.trl-u.. considered e\pendirures uhen incurred. 
_For 

6^AAP reporting purposes,

encumbrances outstanding at year-eni are repo(ed as reser!ations of fund.balances and do not

constit,rte expenditrres or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the

.ubsequent )ear.

The unencumbered balance ofany appropriation at the end ot the fiscat )ear will lapse at the end

oi.J n."ut v"-. ott.. upp.opiiu'iont, rnu'nly capital project appropriations' are continuing

accounts for;vhich the Mu;icipal Legislature'haj authorized that an unspent balance from the

prior year be carried forward and made available for current spending'
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COMMONWfALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDIR-{L AWARDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE .JO. 2OII

Ff,DERAL
_ FEDERAL GRANTOR,"ASS TTIROUGH GRANTOR CFDA 2OI1

PROGRAMTITLE NUMBER OXPENDITURf,S

* US DEPARTMf,NT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

- Direct Prograins:

Housing Choice Voucher 14.871 MP S 751,856

- Indirect Progmm:
Passed through P.R. Office of Municipal Affais
Housing Opportunities for Penons wilh Aid5 (HOPW A) 14 741 14-'l'79

- Homeless Prevention 14.262 191'760

- State Block Grant Program (SBGP) 14.228 MP 807,'73'7

Total US Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,796.132

US DEPARTMENT OF HtrALTH AND HUNIAN SERVTCES

Passed through P.R. Office of Municipal Affain

Passed through P.R. Elderl] Commission

Ti(le lll, Pan C, Nurririon Service<

- Total US Department of Health and Human Services

- FEDERAL EMERGtrNCY MANACEMENT AGENCY

- Direct Progami
Public Assistance Grants

_ US DEPARTMENT O[ JUSTICE

- Direct Program:

Public Safety Partnership and Communiry Policing Grants (Cop,

93.383 MP 220,501

91.045

81.544

16.? l0

10.854

156.049

376,550

5,541

19,656

- FEDERALTRANSPORTATTONADMINISTRATION
Passed through PR Depa(ment of Transportation and Public works

Award 201d 20.509 M? 6s0'563

s 2,942,851

MP: Major Program

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through Caguas Area office
Rural Economic De!eLopnent Loans and Grants

FederalAgiculture

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial saatements'

See auditor's rePon.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

Notes to the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 -

NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 .

GENERdL

The accompanying Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederal A ards includesthe f€deralgrant

activity of;he i{u;icipality ofCor;zal ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and is presented

on the accrual basis oiaccounting. The Municipality ofCorozal reporting entity is defined in

Note 1 to the Municipality's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is

presented in accordance nuith the requirement. of oM B C ircular 
"1'13J, 

Audits of States' Local

Governments. and Non-Prcfit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts prcsented in this schedule

may differ fiom amounts presented in the basic financial statements'

RELATIONSHIP TO TIIE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Federal financial assistance revenues and expenditures are reported in the Municipality's

general'purpose financial statements as other govemmental funds and ca-pital project fund

ind". th" u"".uul basis of accounting. Expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of

Federal Awards are presented in the cash basis of accounting

FEDERAL CFDA NUMBER

The CFDA number included in this schedule

name, rerie$ of granl conlracl inlormalion
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.

were determined based on the program

and the Office of Managemenl and BudSet's
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JUAN A. RTVERA, CPA
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

REPORT ON COMPLUNCE AND INTER,NAL CONTROL OVER FINANCAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCAL STATEMENTS

PERFORIITED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
the Municipal Assembly
Municipality of Corozal
Corozal, Puerto Rico

We have audited the financial statements ofthe govemmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate

remaining fund information ofthe Municipaliry ofCorozal as of aad for the year ended June 30, 201 l, rvhich

collectively comprise the Municipality of Corozal basic financial statements and have issued our report

thereon dated December lJ, 201 l. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in United States of America and the $andards applicable to financial audits contained in

Govemment Auditi g Standards, issued by the Comptroller Ceneral ofthe United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Municipality of Corozal intemal control over financial

reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose for the purpose of expressing our
opinions of the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opin;on on the effectiveness of
the Municipality ofCorozal intemalcontrol over financial reporting.

Our considemtion of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the

preceding paragraph and would not necessari,y identify all deficiencies in intemal control over financial

reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below we

identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant

deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees in the normal course ofperforming their assigned funct;ons, to prevent or detect misstatements on

a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that

adversely affects the Municipality of Corozal ability to initiate, authorize, record process or report financiat

data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a

remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Municipaliry of Corozal financial statements that is more than

inconsequential will nor be prevented or detected by Municipality of Corczal internal confol. we consider

the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of internal control over financial reporting. (2011-l)

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in

more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement ofthe finaflcial statements will not be prevented

or detected by the Municipality of Coroal intemal control.

Ourconsidention ofthe intemal control over imancial reporting was for the limited purpose describe in the

Pt!e: 7A7-1&4-2255
Fa: 147-14L225O

EEait jffi l@io@hotDail.m
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First paragraph ofthis section and would not necessarily idendry all deficiencies in the intemal control that
might be significant deficiencies and accordingly would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies
that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However we b€lieve that none of the sisnificant
deficiencies described above is a material \,!€akness.

Compliance

As part ofobtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipa,ity ofCorozal financial statements are
fiee of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance .,r'ith which could have a dtect and material effect on the
determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing and opinion on complianc€ with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such as an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requircd to be reported
Dnder Gowrnmefit Auditing Sta darab and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as :tems (201 l-l).

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Municipality of Coroz l in a separate letter
dated December 13, 2011

Municipaliry of Corozal, response to the findin$ identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of federal findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Municipality of Corozal response and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use ofmanagement, ofthe Honorable Mayor and

The Muricipal Assembly ofMunicipality of Corozal, others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies

and past-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

December l3.20ll
Toa Bajq Puerto iuco

Stamp No. 2633848 ofPuerto Rico Society of Certified Public Accountants was af6xed to the re€ord copy of this

report.

Lic. #7214
Llc. * 2214
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ruAN A. RIVENA, CPA
CERTIFIED PI'BLIC ACCOTJNTANT

REPORT ON COMPLANCE IYITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLUNCE IN A ACCORDANCE IYITH OMB CIRCALARA.I33

To the Honorable Mayor and
the Municipal Assembly
Municipality of Corozal
Corczal, Puerto Rico

We have audited the compliance of MuDicipality of Corozal ivith the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular ,4-133 Compliance Supplement
thatare applicable to each ofits major federal progmms for the year ended June lO, 2011. The Muntipality
of Corozal majol federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor,s results section o] the
accompanying schedule of lurdings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, confacts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibilib, ofthe
Municipality of Corozal management. Our rcsponsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipalify of
Corozal compliance based on otrl audit.

Compliance

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with genemlly accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmental Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular 4-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those Standards and OMB Circular A-ll3 require that we plan and pedorm
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whetier noncompliance with the tlpes of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a ma.jor fedeml program
occurled. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Municipality of Corozal
compliance with those requirements and performing such others procedures as we considered necessaD/ in
tlrc circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
include a legal determination ofthe Municipality of Corozal compliance with those requirements.

As described in item Section fl in the accompanving schedule of findings and questioned costs, the
Municipality of Corozal did not comply with requirements regarding administrative requirements that are
applicable to ils SBGP Program. Compliance with such requirement is necessary for the Municipality of
Corozal to comply with the federal regulations. Also we want to emphasize that this requirement has not been
complied in prior years.

ln our opinion, except for the noncompliance descrjbed in fte preceding paragraph, the Municipalit-v of
Corozal complie4 in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 10,201 L

Pb.N: 7A7-7&,455
Fa: 747-74+2250

Enair jm.loi@notrMit.@m
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Municipality of Corozal is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective

intemal control over compliance with the requirements oflaws, regulalions, contracts, and grant applicable to

federal programs. In plannhg and performing our audit, rve consid€rcd the Municipality ofCorozal intemal

control over compliance with requircments that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program in order to delermine our auditing procedures for the pupose of expressing our opinion on

compliance and to test and report on the intemal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-Dl.

We noted certain matters involving the ifltemal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to
be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to
significant deficiencies in the design or opemtion of the internal control over compliance that, in our
judgment, could adversely affect the Municipality of Corozal ability to administer a major federal program irr

accordance with the applicable requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grants. Reportable conditions

are described in the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs in Section II.

A material \\'eakness is a condition io which the design or opemtion ofone or more ofthe intemal control

components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with the applicable

requirements of laws, regulations, contmcts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal

program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal

course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance

would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be rcportable conditions atd,

accordingly, would not necessarity disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material

weaknesses,

However, we believe that none of the reportable conditions described above is a material weakness. This

report is intended for the information ofthe audit committee, the Municipality's management, the Depafiment

of Housing and Urban Development (Cognizant Agency), and federal awarding agencies and pass-through

entities. Howev€r, this report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

Stamp No. 2613849 oiPuerto Ri@ Socieiy ofCedified Public Accounlans w6 affixed to the rcco'd copy ofthis repon

Decembcr 13,l ll

Llc * 2211
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I. SumIItarv ofAuditor's Result

Financial Statem€nts

T)?e ofauditoas report issued: unqualified opinion

lntemal Control over financial reponing:

Material weakness (es) identified?

Reportable condition (s) identified that are not

Considered to be material weakness?

Noncompliance material to fmancial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Intemal Control over major programs:

Material weakness (es) identified?

Reportable condition (s) identified ibar are not

Considered to be material w€akness?

I}?e ofaudiror's repon issued on complidnce for

major programs: qualifi ed:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to he

reponed in accordance with section 510 (a) of
Circular A-133?

Identification of major progams:

CFDA Numbers Name ofF€denl Prosrum or Cluster

COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO

MLINICIPALITY OF COROZAL
S}iEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEARENDED JUNE 30.20] ]

XNo

_X Yes 

- 

No

_ Yes 
-x-No

X_ Yes

X Yes

X_No

-No

No

No

t4.228
14.871

Audited qualified as low-risk audit?

Stare Block Grant Program

Housing 8 Voucher and Ponability

Dollarthreshold used to distinguish between tlpe A and tvpe B programs: $5000,00
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COMMONWEALTH OF PLTERTO RICO

IV{IINICIPALITY OF COROZAL
SHEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,20II

Federal Awards Findinss and Ouestioned Cost

My examination of compliance with federal requirements of the Municipality of corozal, for the year ended June 30,

20 I I disclosed that grants funds were admhistered in a satisfactory manner, except for the foilowing situationl

SBGP-CFDA No. 14.228

Condition ll-01 - Cash Management

The Voucher program should minimize the time elapsing between transfers offederal funds from agency (OCAM)

and disburs€ment to suppliers.

Criteria

CodeofFederalRegulation2485,2l(5)writtenprocedurestominimizethetimeelapsingbetweenthetrasferof
funds to the recipieni from the US Treasury and the issuance or redemption ofchelks, warants or payments by other

;;;. f* p.o;"- plrrposes by the recipient. To the extent that the lrovisions of the Cash Management

i.p..r".".i e""t 1CUfal €ub. L. 101.4i3) govem, payrnent methods of Slate agencies' instrumentalities' and

n.iJ ug"no .t ut t" 
"onri.r*t 

!.r'ith CMIA Treisury State Agreements or the CMIA default procedures codified at

ii-ilni* zos,..wlrt dmwal ofcash from rhe Treusury fo. Advances under Federal Granr and orher Progam".

Cause

The Municipality does not make payments as soon as they receive the funds'

Effect

The Municipality does not follow the procedures established by federal laws'

Recommendation

Establish the procedures needed to disburse payments within a reasonabte time after receive the funds HUD as the

Federal Regulation established.

Auditee Response

The finance director gave instruction to the employee in charge ofthis area in order to corret the issue mentioned
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO zuCO

MLTNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
SHEDULE OF PR]OR YEARFINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI1

Program Finding/Compliance Status

Condition 10-01 Cash Management

- SBGp-CFDA Still

- No. 14.228 The Voucher Program should minimize the time elapsing Prevails

between transfers of federal funds from agenc] (OCAM) and

- disbursement to suppliers.
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